
CITY COUNCIL BUSINESS MEETING AGENDA 

1705  MAIN STREET, DAPHNE, AL 

APRIL 15, 2013 

6:30 P.M. 
                                                                              

 

 1.  CALL TO ORDER 

 2.  ROLL CALL / INVOCATION / Reverend Jerry Buzzard / Daphne Baptist Church 

 

3.  APPROVE MINUTES:    Council meeting minutes / April 1, 2013 

                                           Council Work Session minutes / April 8, 2013 

                                            

                                                       

4. REPORT STANDING COMMITTEES: 
   A. FINANCE COMMITTEE / Conaway  

       Review minutes / April 8
th

  

       1.)  Resolutions:   
             a.)  Approving School Tax Holiday / Resolution 2013-28 

          

       2.)  Financial Reports: 

             a.)  Treasurers Report / March 31, 2013 

             b.)  Sales & Use Tax Collections / February 28, 2013 

             c.)   Lodging Tax Collections / February 28, 2013 

 

  B.  BUILDINGS & PROPERTY  COMMITTEE-  Davis      

        Review minutes / April 1
st
          

 

 C.   PUBLIC SAFETY -  Rudicell             

 D.  CODE ENFORCEMENT/ORDINANCE COMMITTEE  - Fry      

        Review minutes / April 10
th

  

 

 E.  PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE / SOLID WASTE AUTHORITY  -  LeJeune 

       Review minutes / March 18
th

  

        

 

5. REPORTS OF SPECIAL BOARDS & COMMISSIONS:  
   A.  Board of Zoning Adjustments – Adrienne Jones           

   B.  Downtown Redevelopment Authority - Conaway  

  C.  Industrial Development Board – Davis    

  D.  Library Board  - Lake 

  E.  Planning Commission – Scott   

        Review Special meeting minutes / February 7
th

  

        Review meeting minutes / February 28
th

  

        Set Public Hearing date for May 20, 2013 to consider and advertise: 

        Annexation:                    The Retreat at Tiawasee, LLC 

        Location:                         Southwest of the intersection of Tiawasee Boulevard and County Road 13 

        Present Zoning:               Rsf-2, Single Family District, Baldwin County 

        Requested Zoning:          R-2, Medium Density Single Family Residential District, City of Daphne 

 

  F.  Recreation Board  -  LeJeune   

  G. Utility Board - Fry   

       Review minutes / January 30
th

         

1 4/15/2013 CM



 
 COUNCIL MEETING  AGENDA                            APRIL 15, 2013                                   PAGE   2 

 

 
6.  REPORTS OF OFFICERS: 

     A.  Mayors Report 

           a.)  MOTION:   To authorize the Public Works Director to issue the RFQ to local engineering firms per  

                                        Resolution 2013-08 

            

    B.  City Attorney’s Report 

    C.  Department Head Comments 

         City Clerk Report:  ABC License / Southern Napa / 140 – Special Events Retail  

          

7. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION:   

     

8. RESOLUTIONS & ORDINANCES: 
   

  RESOLUTIONS: 

 

a.)   Declaring Certain Property Surplus . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Resolution 2013-24 

 

b.)   Acceptance of Right-of-Way Located from Well Road 

       to County Road 13. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Resolution 2013-25 

 

c.)  Acceptance of Street and Drainage / Located in the Tiawasee 

      Trace Subdivision. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Resolution 2013-26 

 

d.)  Acceptance of Streets and Drainage / Located in Caroline Woods 

       Subdivision, Phase Two, B. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Resolution 2013-27 

 

e.)  Approving the City of Daphne’s Participation in the State of Alabama 

       Sales Tax Holiday. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Resolution 2013-28 

 

f.)   Support for Auburn University Writing of a Grant for Sustainable 

       Development for Stormwater and Sediment Reduction in D’Olive Bay 

       Watershed. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Resolution 2013-29 

 

 ORDINANCES:    

      

        

       2
nd

  READ  

g.)  Provide a One-Time Discretionary Bonus to Certain Employees. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2013-20 

 

h.)  Adopting Council Rules of Procedure. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2013-21 

 

       

       1
ST

 READ 

i.)  An Ordinance to Control Public and Private Outdoor Lighting. . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2013-23 
 

9.   COUNCIL COMMENTS        

10.  ADJOURN 

2 4/15/2013 CM



CITY OF DAPHNE 

CITY COUNCIL 

 

ROLL CALL 

 

CITY COUNCIL: 

 

COUNCILWOMAN CONAWAY    PRESENT___  ABSENT___ 

 

COUNCILMAN RUDICELL     PRESENT___  ABSENT___ 

 

COUNCILMAN LAKE     PRESENT___  ABSENT___ 

 

COUNCILMAN FRY      PRESENT___  ABSENT___ 

 

COUNCILMAN SCOTT     PRESENT___  ABSENT___ 

 

COUNCILMAN LEJEUNE     PRESENT___  ABSENT___ 

 

COUNCILMAN DAVIS     PRESENT___  ABSENT___ 

 

MAYOR: 

MAYOR HAYGOOD     PRESENT___  ABSENT___ 

 

CITY CLERK: 

REBECCA HAYES      PRESENT___  ABSENT___ 

 

CITY ATTORNEY: 

JAY ROSS       PRESENT___  ABSENT___ 

3 4/15/2013 CM



 

APRIL 1, 2013 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 
 

P
ag

e1
 

1.    CALL TO ORDER:  

Councilman Scott called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m.       

 

2.    ROLL CALL/INVOCATION/PLEDGE OF ALLEGAINCE: 

Rabbi Donald Kunstadt of the Springhill Avenue Temple gave the invocation. 

 

3.    COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT:    

Tommie Conaway; Pat Rudicell, John Lake; Randy Fry; Ron Scott; Robin LeJeune; Joe Davis,  III. 

 

Also present:  Mayor Haygood; Rebecca Hayes, City Clerk; Jay Ross, City Attorney; Richard 

Merchant, Building Official; David Carpenter, Police Chief; James White, Fire Chief; Christine 

Ciancetta, Deputy Finance Director; Margaret Thigpen, Civic Center Director; David McKelroy, 

Recreation Director; Adrienne Jones, Director of Community Development; Richard Johnson, 

Public Works Director; Rick Whitehead, IT Coordinator; Scott Hutchinson, Hutchinson, Moore 

& Rauch; Willie Robison, BZA; Dorothy Morrison, Beautification Committee & DRA; Larry 

Cooke, BZA; Al Guarisco, Village Point Foundation; Tomasina Werner, Beautification 

Committee; Kyle Navarro, Attorney, Adams & Reese; Dr. Foster, Daphne High School; Tom 

Hartner, Daphne Middle School; David Tarwarter, Baldwin County Board of Education; Denise 

D’Oliviera, S.E.E.D.S. 

Absent:  Kim Briley, Finance Director; Vickie Hinman, HR Director; Tonja Young, Library 

Director. 

 

 

3.    APPROVE MINUTES: 

March 18, 2013 Council meeting minutes and March 24, 2013 Council Retreat minutes 

 

The March 18, 2013 council meeting minutes were amended to include comments from Mrs. 

Daphne Robinson during the public hearing to rezone property for Lynn Browne.  The minutes 

stand approved as amended. 

 

The March 24, 2013 council retreat minutes were amended to change the contact for the Cultural 

Center and Amphitheater to council liaison instead of Councilman Rudicell.  The minutes stand 

approved as amended. 

 

CERTIFICATE OF CONGRATULATIONS:   Robert McKillion / Secondary Teacher of the  

                                                                                 Year 

 

Mayor Haygood read and presented the certificate to Mr. McKillion. 

 

Mr. Tarwater presented information regarding Mooresville Graded School District (about 20 

miles north of Charlotte, North Carolina) as the best school system in America. They are trying 

4 4/15/2013 CM



 

APRIL 1, 2013 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 
 

P
ag

e2
 

to emulate that school system.  Update council on the Digital Renaissance Leadership Program. 

He would like council involved in this process.  Mr. Hartner and Dr. Foster spoke regarding the 

importance of this program in the schools.  The community is about to improve, city and schools 

will have a common goal.  Kids will be trained to work on computers. Dr. Foster said that 

Daphne High School is an Internationally Rated School now.  They are implementing challenged 

based learning with word problems, teaching students how to solve problems in a cooperative 

manner, real world problems. They are also focusing on changing and improving ACT scores..  

It will take some time, about a couple of years.  They are also focused on college or career 

development.  Denise D’Oliviera reported that they are working to develop new partnerships 

with the community. 

 

PROCLAMATION:   Child Abuse Prevention Month / Ms. Jessica Ware 

 

Mayor Haygood read and presented the proclamation to Ms. Ware. 

 

PRESENTATION:  Optimist Club Oratorical Contest Champion / Vice President Beth Henson       

                                    / Kristen Smith 

 

Ms. Smith could not be present at the meeting this evening. 

 

 

4.    REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEES: 

      A.   FINANCE COMMITTEE – Conaway 

The next meeting will be April 8
th

 at 4:00 p.m. in the Executive Conference room. 

 

      B.   BUILDINGS & PROPERTY COMMITTEE -  Davis 

The committee met before the council meeting and dealt with needs.  Search and Rescue will be 

coming with a plan to expand their facilities. 

 

      C.   PUBLIC SAFETY  COMMITTEE – Rudicell  

The next meeting will be April 10
th

 at 4:30 p.m. 

 

      D.   CODE ENFORCEMENT/ORDINANCE COMMITTEE – Fry 

The next meeting will be April 10
th

.  

 

      E.   PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE – LeJeune 

The next meeting will be April 15
th

 at 5:00 p.m. 

 

 

 

 

5 4/15/2013 CM



 

APRIL 1, 2013 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 
 

P
ag

e3
 

5.    REPORTS OF SPECIAL BOARDS & COMMITTSIONS: 

      A.   Board of Zoning Adjustments – Adrienne Jones 

There will not be a meeting in April. 

 

      B.   Downtown Redevelopment Authority – Conaway 

The March 28
th

 minutes are in the packet.  The next meeting will be April 24
th

 at 5:30 p.m. 

 

      C.   Industrial Development Board – Davis 

The minutes for the March 25
th

 meeting are in the packet.  Mr. Davis said they are working on an 

ongoing project with Algae Systems, and other projects that are in the early stages.  There are a 

number of things happening with IDB. 

 

      D.   Library Board – Lake 

The minutes for the December, January and February meetings are in the packet.  He mentioned 

some statistics from the minutes, and said the Mango language database is available at the 

library, and can be accessed from home with a library card.  The next meeting will be the April 

11 at 4 p.m. at the Library. 

 

      E.   Planning Commission – Scott 

The commission met last Thursday, and the minutes will be in a future packet.  The commission 

recommended the annexation of the Retreat at Tiawasee, LLC.  The next meeting will be the last 

Thursday of the month. 

 

      F.   Recreation Board – LeJeune 

The next meeting will be April 10
th

 at the Recreation Center. 

 

      G.   Utility Board – Fry 

The next meeting will be April 24
th

 at 5:00 p.m. in the council chambers. 

 

 

6.    REPORTS OF OFFICERS: 

       A.  Mayor’s Report 
          a.) Parade Permit / Southern Nappa / 5K Run/ May 11, 2013  

         b.)  Parade Permit / Christ the King  / 1 Mile Fun Run / April 26, 2013 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Lake to approve the Parade Permit for / Southern Nappa / 5K 

Run / May 11, 2013 and Parade Permit for  / Christ the King  / 1 Mile Fun Run / April 26, 

2013.  Seconded by Councilwoman Conaway. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR          NAY    NONE OPPOSED          MOTION CARRIED 

6 4/15/2013 CM



 

APRIL 1, 2013 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 
 

P
ag

e4
 

      B.  City Attorney’s Report 

Mr. Ross requested council to have an Executive Session at the end of the meeting for about 15 

minutes to discuss pending litigation. 

 

     C.   Department Head Comments 

Margaret Thigpen – Civic Center Director – reported that Ballroom Dance will be April 19
th

.  

 

David Carpenter – Police Chief – reported they made an arrest in the case where a child 

received medicine in an Easter egg. 

 

Tonja Young – Library Director -  Mayor Haygood reported for Ms. Young that the WWII 

Series will be Thursday in the council chambers. 

 

David McKelroy – Recreation Director -  reported the Easter Egg Hunt  was successful, and 

Brown Bag by the Bay will be Thursday from 11:30-1:30 at May Day Park.  Lisa Mills will be 

performing Thursday and Joe Lewis next Thursday.  The Sunday Series will be Sunday April 

21
st
 with the Baldwin Pops performing. 

 

Vickie Hinman – Human Resources Director -  Mayor Haygood reported for Mrs. Hinman that 

there are two (2) job announcements Children’s Librarian and Account Tech. 

 

City Clerk Report – Rebecca Hayes 
a.) AL League of Municipalities Annual Convention Voting Delegate / May 18-21, 2013 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Rudicell to appoint Councilman John Lake as voting delegate to 

the Alabama League of Municipalities Convention May 18-21, 2013, and Mayor Dane 

Haygood as 2
nd

  Alternate.  Seconded by Councilman Davis. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR          NAY    NONE OPPOSED          MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

7.    PUBLIC PARTICIPATION: 

Ms. Annie Root – President of Bay Rivers Art Guild (BRAG) – spoke regarding making BRAG 

more visible, and recognizing that BRAG is a vital entity of the city.  She would like the Jubilee 

Festival reconfigured to include BRAG.  They are financially struggling and asked council for 

help. She wanted people to know that BRAG is not just for old women it is for people of all ages. 

 

Mr. Willie Robison – 560 Stuart Street – spoke regarding limiting Public Participation 

comments to just things on the agenda.  He is against limiting public comments. 

 

 

7 4/15/2013 CM



 

APRIL 1, 2013 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 
 

P
ag

e5
 

8.    RESOLUTIONS & ORDINANCES: 

         

       RESOLUTIONS: 

a.)  Rename the Southern Entrance of Deerwood Drive /  

      Deerwood Drive South. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Resolution 

2013-23 

 

MOTION BY Councilwoman Conaway to waive the reading of Resolution 2013-23.  

Seconded by Councilman LeJeune. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR          NAY    NONE OPPOSED          MOTION CARRIED 

 

MOTION BY Councilwoman Conaway to adopt Resolution 2013-23.  Seconded by 

Councilman Fry. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR          NAY    NONE OPPOSED          MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

 

       ORDINANCES: 

       2
nd

  READ  

a.)  Zoning Amendment: Lynne R. Brown / R-2, Medium Density Single 

      Family Residential District to R-6,  

     Garden or patio Home District. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2013-14 

 

b.) Appropriation of Funds: Profit Drive Extension:  

        Additional Appropriation. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2013-15  

 

c.)  Appropriation of Funds:  Road Striping & Marking Projects . . . . . ./Ordinance 2013-16 

 

d.)  Lodging Tax Fund Appropriation: ADECA Pedestrian Bridge 

 @D’Olive Creek West . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2013-17 

 

e.)  Designating Signatories on Various Accounts of the  

      City of Daphne. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2013-18 

 

f.)  Intergovernmental Service Agreement with Baldwin County /  

      Round-a-bout @ County Road 13 & County Road 64. . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2013-19 

 

8 4/15/2013 CM



 

APRIL 1, 2013 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 
 

P
ag

e6
 

 

     1
ST

 READ 

g.)  Provide a One-Time Discretionary Bonus to Certain Employees. . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 

2013-20 

 

h.)  Adopting Council Rules of Procedure. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2013-21 

 

i.)  Reclassification of Assistant City Clerk Position . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2013-22 

 

MOTION BY Councilman LeJeune to waive the reading of Ordinances 2013-14, 2013-

15, 2013-16, 2013-17, 2013-18 and 2013-19.  Seconded by Councilman Lake. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR          NAY    NONE OPPOSED          MOTION CARRIED 

 

MOTIION BY Councilman Lake to adopt Ordinances 2013-15, 2013-16, 2013-17, 2013-18 

and 2013-19.  Seconded by Councilman LeJeune. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR          NAY    NONE OPPSOSED         MOTION CARRIED 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Lake to adopt Ordinance 2013-14.  Seconded by Councilman 

LeJeune. 

 

AYE    Scott                             NAY     Conaway, Rudicell, Lake, Fry, LeJeune, Davis 

 

                                                       MOTION FAILED 
 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Lake to suspend the rules to consider Ordinance 2013-22.  

Seconded by Councilwoman Conaway. 

 

ROLL CALL VOTE 

Conaway  Aye     LeJeune Aye 

Rudicell  Aye     Davis  Aye 

Lake   Aye     Scott  Aye 

Fry   Aye 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR         NAY    NONE OPPOSED          MOTION CARRIED 

9 4/15/2013 CM



 

APRIL 1, 2013 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 
 

P
ag

e7
 

MOTION BY Councilman Lake to waive the reading for Ordinance 2013-22.  Seconded 

by Councilwoman Conaway. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR          NAY    NONE OPPOSED          MOTION CARRIED 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Lake to adopt Ordinance 2013-22.  Seconded by Councilwoman 

Conaway. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR          NAY    NONE OPPOSED          MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

ORDINANCES 2013-20 AND 2013-21 WERE 1
ST

 READ. 

 

 

 

9.    COUNCIL COMMENTS: 

Councilwoman Conaway commended the schools in Daphne, and is proud of them, and wants to 

support them.  She thanked the Mayor and Council President for the Council Retreat, it was very 

productive, and she looks forward to moving forward with the ideas from the retreat. 

 

Councilman Lake enjoyed Mrs. Roots presentation regarding BRAG.  He wants to see how 

council can help them with their endeavors.  He said he enjoyed the retreat, and looks forward to 

others. 

 

Councilman LeJeune said the Beautification Committee meeting is Wednesday, April 3
rd

 at 

Public Works.  He said his son takes art on Wednesday’s so it is not just for old women. 

 

Councilman Davis thanked Mr. McKillion for his cutting edge aspect in education.  He 

congratulated Daphne High School for becoming a Blue Ribbon School, he said that was an 

accomplishment for any school, and there is always ways to do things better.  He said he will 

always tell why he votes for or against an issue, and will continue to speak candidly to the chair 

and citizens. 

 

Council President Scott outlined the six (6) Action Items from the Council Retreat saying he has 

asked a council person to take on a task.  They are as follows: 

1. Strategic Plan – Councilman Davis / Will work with Mayor and staff 

2. Annexation – Councilman Fry 

3. Grant Writing – Councilwoman Conaway 

4. Pay Scale – Councilman LeJeune 

5. Nicholson Center – Councilman Lake 

10 4/15/2013 CM



 

APRIL 1, 2013 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 
 

P
ag

e8
 

6. Public/Private Partnership for Amphitheater and Cultural Center  -  Councilman 

Rudicell / Will work with Village Point Foundation 

 

An Extra Item that discussed at the Council Retreat: 

 

7. Recreation – Councilman LeJeune 

 

Mayor Haygood thanked Mrs. Root and her associates for coming to the meeting.  He said he 

has become more enlightened regarding teachers and how valuable they are, they are passionate, 

talented and committed.  He will continue to find ways to help Daphne schools. 

 

10.   ADJOURN: 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Lake to adjourn into Executive Session for 15 minutes to 

discuss pending litigation.  Seconded by Councilman LeJeune. 

City Attorney, Jay Ross, certified that the foregoing stated reason was appropriate 

according to the Alabama Open Meetings Act. 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR          NAY    NONE OPPOSED          MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

THERE BEING NO FURTHER BUSINESS TO DISCUSS, THE MEETING ADJOURNED AT 

 8:15 P.M. 

 

Respectfully submitted by,                                                                  

 

___________________________________ 

Rebecca A. Hayes,          

City Clerk  

 

        Certification of Presiding Officer: 

 

        

        _____________________________ 

        Ron Scott, 

        Council President   

       

11 4/15/2013 CM



APRIL 8, 2013 

CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

 

1 

 

COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT: Tommie Conaway; Pat Rudicell; John Lake; Randy Fry; Ron 

Scott; Robin LeJeune.  

 

 

Also present: Mayor Dane Haygood; Rebecca Hayes, City Clerk; Britton Bonner, Attorney; Richard 

Johnson, Public Works Director; Adrienne Jones, Director of Community Development; David 

McKelroy, Recreation Director; Ashley Campbell, Environmental Programs Manager; Joe Lemoine, 

Planning Commission; Kyle Navarro, Attorney, Adams & Reese. 

 

Absent:  Jay Ross, City Attorney. 

 

Council President Scott called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. 

 

 

1. SUPPORT LETTER FOR AUBURN UNIVERSITY SPO0NSORED GRANT / ASHLEY 

CAMPBELL: 

The grant is to study the watershed, and they will allow the city to use their information to select the 

best stormwater management practice to minimize cost and maximize stormwater reduction which 

will be a great tool in helping Daphne be more cost effective.  Auburn is sponsoring and writing the 

grant. Spanish Fort and Lake Forest Property Owners Association support the grant. The city will 

receive digital files to use.  This will need to be submitted in resolution form. 

 

Consensus of Council was to put this on the agenda for Monday.                                                                                                                    

 

2. SHARE THE ROAD / REFERRED FROM PUBLIC SAFETY 

Mr. Doug Sims with Team Share the Road requested that the City of Daphne adopt an ordinance  

requiring motorist to leave a safe distance between the motor vehicle and the bicycle of not less than 

three (3) feet when passing a cyclist. 

 

Consensus of Council was to send this to the Ordinance Committee for consideration. 

 

3. SIGNAGE / MAYOR HAYGOOD 

Mayor Haygood presented council with a list of proposed changes (list is spread out upon these 

minutes) to the sign ordinance in order to get things moving, and to see what council is looking for 

as regards changes to the provision.  He reviewed some of the points with council.  

 

I. A-Frame Sign 

A. Location: Front Door 

i. Limit one per business with 20 feet of an entrance  

B. Limited to business hours 

C. Real Estate on ROW – on weekends  

 

II. Roadside Promotional Signage  

A. City Council can grant exception to allow during the week (Life 

South, The Haven) 

12 4/15/2013 CM



APRIL 8, 2013 

CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

 

2 

B. Roadside 

i. Limit one per road entrance 

C. Limited to business hours 

D. Limited to weekends 

 

III. Banners 

A. Size 

B. Temporary in nature – 30 days   (Publix King Cake Banner)  

C. Professional – Not Handwritten - Professional 

D. Larger Size for . . . .  50 SF 

i. I-10 

ii. State Hwy 

iii. Dual Frontage 

 

IV. Building Signage 

A. Percentage of building frontage 

B. Luminosity 

C. Back of building 

D. I-10   (Eastern Shore Toyota) 

 

V. Inflatables 

A. Limited to weekends 

B. Not on ROW 

C. Limited to business hours 

 

VI. Tents 

 

VII. Political Signs 

A. Moved into Sign Ordinance 

B. Changes 

i. Clarify ROW 

ii. 15’ TO 16’ max 

 

VIII. Commercial Real Estate Signs  

A. Define 

B. Non-Permitted  

C. Size 32S.F. 

D. I-10 (64SF) on the State Highway and Interstate 

E. Allow Banner in lieu of rigid signs 

 

 

IX. Digital Signage 

A. Frequency of message change 

B. Luminosity 

C. Size restrictions 

 

13 4/15/2013 CM



APRIL 8, 2013 

CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

 

3 

 

X. New Store/Grand Opening 

A. Major Remodel  (Winn Dixie)  

B. Building Permit Exceed threshold 

 

XI. Monument/Pylon Signage 

A. Multi-tenant  (Colonial Plaza) 

B. Monument 1500 SF    Bay   15K 

i. 15 SF per tenant 

C. Protect Downtown District 

D. Entice monument signage with additional square footage 

 

 

DISCUSS ALLOWING SIGNAGE BY BUSINESS USAGE 

 

* Permanent 

* During Business Hours 

* Promotional  

 - Weekends 

 - Grand Openings 

 - Holidays 

 - Approved Functions 

* Real Estate Signs 

* Political  

  

 WHERE DO WE GO FROM HERE 

  * PROCEDURE 

  * TIMELINE 

  * EXTEND CURRENT PROMOTIONAL PERIOD 

 

 

Consensus of council was to take time to review the Mayors proposal, and make notes of what they 

would like to see in the revision and to place this on the May work session. 

 

4. WHATEVER ELSE IS DEEMED NECESSARY 

a.)  Lamar Lawsuit 

 

Mayor Haygood discussed with council the Lamar Signs lawsuit saying that the judge has ordered 

mediation and has given the dates of May 14
th

 or May 16
th

 at the courthouse. 

 

Council discussed the mediation order, and the consensus of the council was for the City Attorney to 

negotiate with Lamar to see if they have a better offer than the last one before they agree to 

mediation. 

 

 

 

14 4/15/2013 CM



APRIL 8, 2013 

CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

 

4 

 

   b.) Action Items from Council Retreat 

Council President Scott asked council members to have a written statement to update the council of 

their progress with their item for the next work session agenda. 

 

 

5.  ADJOURN 

 

There being no further business to discuss the meeting adjourned at 8:05 p.m. 

 

 

Respectfully submitted by,       

                                                     

                               

___________________________                                                                                        

Rebecca A. Hayes,                                                                     

City Clerk                                                                                                                                             

       Certification of Presiding Officer:   

 

 

       ________________________________      

      Ron Scott,     

      Council President     

15 4/15/2013 CM



 

 

 

REPORT  

OF  

STANDING COMMITTEES 

16 4/15/2013 CM



CITY OF DAPHNE 
FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES 

April 8, 2013 
4:00 P.M. 

 
I.      CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 
 
The meeting was called to order at 4:00 pm.  Present were Chairperson Mrs. Conaway, Councilman Ron Scott, 
Councilman Joseph Davis, Finance Director Kim Briley, Deputy Finance Director Christine Ciancetta,  Senior 
Accountant Suzânne Henson and Accounting Technician Sue Moody. 
 
Mayor Dane Haygood arrived at 4:03 and Councilman John Lake arrived at 4:04. 
 
Also in attendance were Human Resource Director Vickie Hinman, Public Works Director Richard Johnson, 
Recreation Director David McKelroy, Chief White, Chief Carpenter, Library Director Tonya Young, Civic Center 
Director Margaret Thigpen, Revenue Officer Heather Gwynn, and Councilman Pat Rudicell.                          . 
 
Councilman Robin LeJeune arrived at 4:55 and Councilman Randy Fry at 5:05. 
 
II.      PUBLIC PARTICIPATION  
 
A.   FY2012 AUDIT/CAFR - Mr. Mark Chapman & Mrs. Kelli Rice, Smith Dukes and Buckalew. 

 
 Mr. Mark Chapman reviewed the Fiscal Year 2012 CAFR/Audit Report.  Mr. Chapman stated that 
Mrs. Briley, with her staff, prepared the bulk of the report and noted this was the first year that the City 
of Daphne had prepared a CAFR (Comprehensive Annual Financial Report) to submit for the GFOA 
Accounting Award.   
 
Mr. Chapman noted that the CAFR is highly recognized by credit rating agencies and shows 
compliance to evolving financial reporting standards.  Mr. Chapman stated that the City’s CAFR had 
been submitted to the Government Finance Officers Association’s Certificate of Achievement for 
Excellence in Financial Reporting Program and he anticipates the City will receive that award.   Mr. 
Chapman stated that all went well in the audit and that there were no notable conditions.  Mr. 
Chapman also noted that next year the Pension Liability would be required to be reported in the 
Financial Statements. 

 
III.    HUMAN RESOURCES BUSINESS 
 

A.  Update on Human Resources Department Activity 
      Mrs. Vickie Hinman reviewed the Human Resource Report including open position status. 
 

Positions      Status 
Asst. City Clerk      Posting: April 5-19 

GIS Technician      DOH: April 8, 2013 

Fire Fighter      Scheduling Interviews 

Police Officer (2)     Testing 

Children’s Librarian     Reviewing Applications 

Accounting Technician     Posting: April 1-15 

 

Safety Committee Meeting discussed the hiring a new service company was hired due to the recent fire 

inspection and the Voice Evacuation system issues at the Civic Center.   The Fire Inspector announced 

Emergency Operations Plan training will be scheduled for June. 

 

 

 
17 4/15/2013 CM



2013-04-08  2  

Other Human Resources’ projects or meetings:   

Conference calls/training with Kronos regarding new server and upgrades. 

Reviewing Personnel Handbook 

March 20-New Employee Orientation 

Relay for Life-TV Raffle-May 3 

Written test Police Officer candidates (38)-April 1 

Physical Agility Test-Fire Fighters - March 21 and 22 

Physical Agility Test-Police Officers-April 17 

 
Mrs. Hinman discussed Loss Control Dividends and noted that due to the City’s lower cost the City 
was awarded the Silver Certificate Award. 
 
IV. CURRENT BUSINESS 
 
A.  Financial Reports 

 
1.  Treasurer’s Report: March 31, 2013 

    The Treasurer’s Report totaling $ 18,141,326.94 was presented by Mrs. Briley                    .   
 
Motion by Councilman Scott to accept the Treasurer’s Report as of March 31,                          
2013 in the amount of $18,141,326.94.  Seconded by Councilman Davis.  Motion 
carried. 
 

2.  Sales and Use Taxes:  February 28, 2013 
Sales & Use taxes collected were $1,004,349.50.  Mrs Briley stated collections collected were over 
budget by $83,251.44 for the month of February and $278,813.64 YTD.  Mrs. Henson noted that 
Eastern Shore Park collections are included in this total and noted on the report as well. 
     
 

3.  Lodging Tax Collections,  February 28 , 2013  
The monthly lodging taxes collected were $54,207.03.  Discussion continued that this was higher than 
collections for February, 2012. 
 
 

4. Summary Statement:  Revenues & Expenditures w/Comparatives, March 31, 2013                         
Mrs. Briley reviewed the Revenues & Expenditures report w/comparatives to the previous six years for 
YTD as of March 31, 2013.  Mrs. Briley noted that the total revenues over expenditures for 3/31/13 is 
$376,271. 
 

5. Revenue, Expenditures, Personnel, & Operating Comparatives, March 31, 
Mrs. Briley presented a comparative report including bar charts for comparatives for years: FY06 – 
FY13. 

 
6. Report: New Business Licenses – March 31,  2013 

Mrs. Conaway reviewed the Business Licenses report.  There were 54 new business and 0 closed for 
March 2013.     
      
    

7.  Bills Paid Reports – March 31,  2013 
Report were reviewed and no noted changes.  Mrs. Conaway inquired about the Boys & Girls Club 
payment.  Mrs. Briley stated the Mayor approved the check request and returned it to Accounts 
Payable this morning.  Mrs. Briley noted that the check would be processed in tomorrows check run. 
 
 

18 4/15/2013 CM



2013-04-08  3  

 
 
 B. Appropriation Request: 

1.  FY2013 PERSONNEL/CAPITAL REQUEST 
Mayor Haygood presented a FY13 Personnel/Capital Equipment request spreadsheet that has been 
updated from the original request spreadsheet included in with the FY2013 Budget.  Mayor Haygood 
had prioritized the list of items for discussion noting that #6-10 were not critical needs.  All department 
heads discussed their requests in detail as follows:   

 Court - Judge Hoyt discussed the need to add back a Court Magistrate.  Judge Hoyt noted 
there were previously three employees in this department and the previous Judge decided to 
reduce the number of employees to two.  Judge continued that due to the on-call requirements 
and work load three employees are needed.  The Judge discussed that other municipalities 
have more than three and they are smaller Cities.  Mr. Lake noted that an increase in pay was 
approved when the employee count was decreased.  Judge said that he could obtain 
comparative salary ranges from surrounding municipalities if needed. 

 Police – Chief Carpenter noted that Daphne is behind in its officer count according to the 
annexations and population to officer requirements. 

 Fire – Chief White noted his request to reclassify three firefighters to Lieutenants was needed 
for crew supervision. 

 Public Works – Richard Johnson discussed permanent employees vs. temp employees and 
the need for a Yard Manager to check equipment in/out form the PW equipment yard.  Mr. 
Johnson noted that all equipment was replacement equipment except:  barricades, Sweeper 
attachment, and tractor & bush hog. 

 Recreation – David McKelroy discussed he would like to bring the employee count back to 
where it had been in previous years and noted that currently salary employees are absorbing 
the additional hours of work required. 

 Library – Tonja Young discussed how the Library Aide position has evolved and all the new 
young adult activities this position oversees/initiates.  Mrs. Young also discussed reclassifying 
the IT position back to its previous grade.  Mrs. Young also discussed the drawings for the 
proposed new additionto the Library were just structural drawings – blueprints would have to 
be obtained. 

 Civic Center – Margaret Thigpen discussed that the Bayfront decking is a liability issue.  Mr. 
Scott noted this could come from the Lodging Tax fund. 

Discussion continued on the Personnel and Equipment requests. 
  
  C.  Back-To-School Tax Holiday   (RESOLUTION) 
 
Councilman Lake asked about Sales Tax benefit for teachers to purchase classroom supplies.  
Discussion continued that County and State were waiving Sales Tax. 
 

Motion by Councilman Davis to adopt the Back-To-School Sales Tax Holiday 
resolution .  Seconded by Councilman Scott.  Motion carried. 
 
Mrs. Conaway asked if Council had Discretionary Funds?  Mrs. Briley noted at one time the City Attorney had 
looked into this and found that a Class 8 city cannot have discretionary funds. 
 
V. OLD BUSINESS 
No old business was discussed at the time. 
      
 
VI. ADJOURN   
 
Meeting adjourned at 5:54. 

19 4/15/2013 CM



20 4/15/2013 CM



21 4/15/2013 CM



22 4/15/2013 CM



23 4/15/2013 CM



24 4/15/2013 CM



25 4/15/2013 CM



26 4/15/2013 CM



27 4/15/2013 CM



28 4/15/2013 CM



29 4/15/2013 CM



30 4/15/2013 CM



31 4/15/2013 CM



32 4/15/2013 CM



33 4/15/2013 CM



34 4/15/2013 CM



35 4/15/2013 CM



36 4/15/2013 CM



37 4/15/2013 CM



38 4/15/2013 CM



39 4/15/2013 CM



Ordinance Committee 

 Wednesday, April 10, 2013 

1705 Main Street 

Daphne, AL 

5:30 p.m. 
        

Councilman Randy Fry, Chairman       

Councilman Ron Scott                                                                  

Councilman Robin LeJeune 

Councilman Pat Rudicell 

       CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 
I. CALL TO ORDER: 

 Chairman Fry called the meeting to order at 5:30 p.m. 

 

    MEMBERS PRESENT:  Randy Fry, Chairman; Pat Rudicell; Ron Scott; Robin  

                                                         LeJeune. 

 

Also present:  Rebecca Hayes, recording secretary; Captain Danny Bell; Mrs. Mary Jansen; 

Shelly Ballington; Lynn Williams Cook. 

 

II.  APPROVE MINUTES  / NO MINUTES TO APPROVE / NO QUORUM MARCH 13, 2013 

 

 

III.   PUBLIC PARTICIPATION: 

Mrs. Mary Jansen – Owner of the Record Bar - spoke regarding Lucy’s Love Shop coming to 

the shopping center where her business is located saying she is not against a lingerie shop, she is 

concerned about the reflection of the storefront atmosphere.  She would like it to be laid out 

exactly what would be in the store, what is allowed and what is not allowed. 

 

Mrs. Felicia Johnson – Owner of Rosie’s – spoke regarding her concern for the nature of the 

business. 

 

Ms. Gail Deerman – Owner of the building -  has no problem with the business coming into her 

building.  She thinks is will be a good source of revenue, and she does not understand how it 

comes under the category of Adult Entertainment. 

 

Ms. Shelly Ballington, owner of Lucy’s Love Shop Franchises, spoke to the committee regarding 

her business as to what they have in the stores, etc.  She related the different places where there 

are franchises, and that there is no problems with them being there.  She requested that the 

business be removed from under the category of Adult Entertainment, because the majority of 

items sold in the store is lingerie. She said the rule “No one over 18 admitted” was a store policy, 

because she did not want children coming in and going through the lingerie, but if that was a 

problem she would be willing to amend it. They do not have magazines in the store. It is a 

couple’s store.  She wants to work together with the city so that both parties are comfortable. 

 

The location for the proposed shop is in the shopping center with Rosie’s, Trade Winds Beauty 

Salon and Badcock’s on Highway 98.  It is the end building between Badcock’s and the other 

buildings in the center.  

 

 

40 4/15/2013 CM



 

ORDINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING                                                               PAGE  2 

 

 

IV.      ORDINANCE REVIEW / DISCUSSION 

a.)  Adult Entertainment / Novelty Shop / Ordinance 2003-09 

 

Mr. Kyle Navarro, City Attorney, reviewed his proposal of changes to Ordinance 2003-09.  One 

of the additions was a 1,000 feet setback between each similar business to protect from clustering 

of these types of businesses, and to protect the city from blight that this clustering would cause.  

Also, the business would have to get a permit from Community Development at a cost before 

they could apply for their business license.  Code Enforcement will enforce the ordinance, and 

will have fines attached from $50 - $500 and jail. 

 

The committee discussed the word “preponderance” in the ordinance, and Kyle will do more 

research on this, time restriction and the age for employment by these businesses, and he is also 

researching escort agencies and adult hotels. He will research and get with Mr. Ross to see which 

category Lucy’s Love Shop will fits into. 

 

Kyle will have a draft of the ordinance for the May meeting.   

 

 

b.) To Control Public and Private Outdoor Lighting / Ordinance 2003-31  

Kyle recommended striking the word “residential” from Section B-1 / Luminaire restrictions / in 

the sentence that reads: “No direct light from any private outdoor luminaire owned by any owner 

or tenant of any residential (delete) property shall direct light upon any residential property, house 

or structure not owned by that owner or tenant”, which will address the problem the home owner 

had with a business shining a light on their home. 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to recommend to council the following amendment to 

Ordinance 2003-31, Section B-1:   Striking the word “residential” from Section B-1 

Luminaire restrictions / in the sentence that reads: “No direct light from any private 

outdoor luminaire owned by any owner or tenant of any residential (delete) property shall 

direct light upon any residential property, house or structure not owned by that owner or 

tenant.”  Seconded by Councilman Rudicell. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR          NAY    NONE OPPOSED          MOTION  CARRIED 

 

c.) Share the Road / Proposed Ordinance 

Kyle handed out a proposed ordinance requiring motorist to leave a safe distance between the 

motor vehicle and the bicycle of not less than three (3) feet when passing a cyclist. 

 

The committee discussed the proposed ordinance and requested Mrs. Hayes to distribute 

the proposed ordinance to the Police Department, Municipal Judge and the City 

Prosecutor for review and recommendations, and to bring back to next meeting. 

 

d.) Door to Door Solicitation / Ordinance 1995-08 & 2010-47 

Kyle said that he has not had a chance to work on this ordinance, but he will work on 

tightening it up for the May meeting. 
 

41 4/15/2013 CM



ORDINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING                                                                   PAGE  3 

 

 

 

V.         OTHER BUSINESS 

No other business to discuss. 

 

 

VI.   ADJOURN 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to adjourn.  Seconded by Council Rudicell. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR         NAY    NONE OPPOSED          MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

 

There being no further business to discuss the meeting adjourn at 6:45 p.m.  

 

 

 

Respectfully submitted 

 

 

Code Enforcement / Ordinance Committee 

42 4/15/2013 CM



CITY OF DAPHNE Mayor Dane Haygood 

PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE MINUTES Councilwoman Tommie Conaway, District 1 

Time: 5:00 PM on March 18, 2013 Councilman John Lake, District 3 

Location: City Hall  Councilman Ron Scott, District 5       Councilman John Lake, District 3  

 Chairman - Councilman Robin LeJeune, District 6      
          

I. CALL TO ORDER 
  

 The March meeting of the Public Works Committee was called to order at 5:00 PM   
 

 Present: 
 

 Councilwoman Tommie Conaway, Councilman John Lake, Councilman Ron Scott, Councilman 

Robin LeJeune (Chairman), Richard D. Johnson-Director Public Works, Sandra Cushway-

Administrative Assistant Public Works, Dorothy Morrison-Daphne Beautification Committee, Randy 

Davis-Volkert,  
 

II. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION & CORRESPONDENCE 
A. Work Request Report for February 2013 was reviewed.  No Comments. 

B. Vehicle/Equipment Maintenance Reports for February 2013 were reviewed – Richard reported 

that most of the maintenance in Solid Waste is due to equipment being installed on new truck.  

Councilman LeJeune asked if 57K was the average amount for this time of the year.  Richard 

responded that he would confirm that number, but that he believes it is a little lower than 

previous years. 

C. Public Participation – None  

D. Correspondence – None 

 

III. OLD BUSINESS  

A. Minutes from February 18, 2013 Meeting were reviewed and accepted as written. Motion by 

Councilwoman Conaway to accept minutes.  Motion seconded by Councilwoman Lake. 

B. Mosquito Report – no report submitted or reviewed. (not currently in spraying season). 

Marjorie Bellue and Graham Cox have passed the Public Health Certification exam which 

brings the City into compliance for new guidelines regarding mosquito spraying. 

C. Street Sweeper Reports for February 2013 were reviewed.  Limited street sweeping was done 

due to special projects. 

 

IV. NEW BUSINESS 

A. None  
  

V. DIRECTOR’S REPORT 

A. FY14 Sidewalk Proposal and Appropriation (Request to add sidewalk on South side of Van 

Avenue on easement in front of Ashley Gates Apartments).  Richard reported that Ashley 

Gates Apartments have requested a sidewalk on the easement in front of the complex.  This 

would entail 610’ of sidewalk.  Will add to FY14 for consideration. 

B. All bridges are required to be inspected every two years.  We had one bridge that had capacity 

changes to weight restrictions.  The bridge on Bayview Dr and D’Olive.  Volkert inspects the 

bridges for the City.  It was recommended that repairs and scouring be completed.  Richard 

feels that this work can be completed in-house. 

C. Pot hole on Rollinghill – French drain installed.  Problem is a result of a natural spring 

beneath it.  Plans are to mill it, patch it and then fill it. 

 

VI. DAPHNE SOLID WASTE DISPOSAL AUTHORITY 

A. Monthly Equipment Use Report for February 2013 was reviewed.   

B. Monthly Recycle Tonnage Report (Tonnage Comparison) for February 2013 was reviewed.  

Increase in tonnage this month.  E-Recycling material is picked up at no charge to the City.  

43 4/15/2013 CM



Looking into potentially getting paid for e-recycling. 

C. Solid Waste New Customer Report for February 2012 was reviewed.  Nine (9) new residential 

customers in the City this past month.  So far, 68 new residents this fiscal year with many 

more new homes currently under construction.  New subdivision being developed (Jubilee 

Ridge has requested garbage service.  Currently there are 8-12 houses.  There will be 114 new 

homes once completed.  Estimated completion date is 90-120 days). 

 

VII. MUSEUM COMMITTEE 

A. No Committee meeting this month.  (Committee meetings will be held every other month) 

 

VIII. BEAUTIFICATION COMMITTEE 

A. Minutes for February 3, 2013 Meeting were reviewed.  There is a lot of activity sprucing up 

the City this month (pot holes being filled, Crape Myrtles being planted, removal of dead 

trees, etc.)   

B. Three (3) new members added to the Beautification Committee. 

C. Councilman LeJeune commented that originally Crape Myrtles were to be planted 6’ behind 

the curb.  ALDOT has since changed that to 12’.  This change is being challenged. 

 

IX. ENVIRONMENTAL ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

A. February 22, 2013 Meeting Minutes (none received)   

 

X. ENGINEER’S REPORT 

A. HMR: No additional report 

B. Volkert: No additional report  

 

XI. FUTURE BUSINESS 

A. Next Meeting for March 18, 2013 was announced 

 

XII. ADJOURNMENT 

Meeting adjourned at 4:50 PM 

44 4/15/2013 CM



 

 

 

REPORT  

OF  

SPECIAL BOARDS 

45 4/15/2013 CM



46 4/15/2013 CM



47 4/15/2013 CM



48 4/15/2013 CM



49 4/15/2013 CM



50 4/15/2013 CM



51 4/15/2013 CM



52 4/15/2013 CM



53 4/15/2013 CM



54 4/15/2013 CM



55 4/15/2013 CM



56 4/15/2013 CM



57 4/15/2013 CM



58 4/15/2013 CM



59 4/15/2013 CM



60 4/15/2013 CM



61 4/15/2013 CM



62 4/15/2013 CM



63 4/15/2013 CM



64 4/15/2013 CM



65 4/15/2013 CM



66 4/15/2013 CM



67 4/15/2013 CM



68 4/15/2013 CM



69 4/15/2013 CM



70 4/15/2013 CM



71 4/15/2013 CM



72 4/15/2013 CM



73 4/15/2013 CM



74 4/15/2013 CM



75 4/15/2013 CM



76 4/15/2013 CM



77 4/15/2013 CM



78 4/15/2013 CM



79 4/15/2013 CM



80 4/15/2013 CM



81 4/15/2013 CM



82 4/15/2013 CM



83 4/15/2013 CM



84 4/15/2013 CM



85 4/15/2013 CM



86 4/15/2013 CM



87 4/15/2013 CM



88 4/15/2013 CM



89 4/15/2013 CM



90 4/15/2013 CM



91 4/15/2013 CM



92 4/15/2013 CM



93 4/15/2013 CM



94 4/15/2013 CM



95 4/15/2013 CM



96 4/15/2013 CM



97 4/15/2013 CM



98 4/15/2013 CM



99 4/15/2013 CM



100 4/15/2013 CM



101 4/15/2013 CM



102 4/15/2013 CM



 

 

SET DATE FOR PUBLIC HEARING  

 

MAY 20, 2013 
 

TO CONSIDER: 

 

 

 
         

        Annexation:                    The Retreat at Tiawasee, LLC 

 

        Location:                         Southwest of the intersection of  Tiawasee       

                                                Boulevard and County Road 13 

 

        Present Zoning:               RSF-2, Single Family District,  

                                                Baldwin County 

 

        Requested Zoning:          R-2, Medium Density Single Family  

                                                Residential District, City of Daphne 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

103 4/15/2013 CM



104 4/15/2013 CM



105 4/15/2013 CM



106 4/15/2013 CM



107 4/15/2013 CM



108 4/15/2013 CM



109 4/15/2013 CM



110 4/15/2013 CM



111 4/15/2013 CM



112 4/15/2013 CM



113 4/15/2013 CM



114 4/15/2013 CM



115 4/15/2013 CM



116 4/15/2013 CM



117 4/15/2013 CM



118 4/15/2013 CM



119 4/15/2013 CM



120 4/15/2013 CM



121 4/15/2013 CM



122 4/15/2013 CM



123 4/15/2013 CM



124 4/15/2013 CM



125 4/15/2013 CM



126 4/15/2013 CM



127 4/15/2013 CM



 

MINUTES - 2 

   

MOTION BY Lon Johnston to approve the Minutes for the December 17, 2012 Utilities Board Special 
Meeting; Seconded by Randy Fry. 

AYE: JOHNSTON, SEGALLA, FRY           ABSENT: JENKINS   ABSTAIN:   MOTION CARRIED 

 
       No regular Utilities Board meeting was held for December 2012, therefore no minutes were submitted. 
 

V. Old Business 
A. Algae Systems at old Maintenance Facility – update 
        Danny Lyndall updated the Board regarding the Algae Systems project at the old Maintenance Facility.   

 
B. Communications Site Lease with JMF Solutions - update 
        Jerry Speegle advised that the lease had been take care of and approved by the City of Daphne and that construction  
        would begin very soon. 
 

VI. New Business 
    No new business was addressed. 

 

VII. BOARD ATTORNEY’S REPORT 
 Mr. Speegle advised that an approximate 30-minute executive session would be necessary to address impending litigation. 

 
VIII. FINANCIAL REPORT 

 Teresa Logiotatos highlighted the financial reports for the Board stating that even with the warm winter, figures were 
developing normally.  She advised that the audit is still underway and that the audit presentation would be in March or 
April.  She and Danny Lyndall answered Mr. Johnston’s question regarding “fire line availability” as well as his request for  
comment on the large variance for “Group Insurance”.  Mr. Johnston remarked that he was glad that the figures are 
showing Daphne Utilities closer to budget figures.  Chairman Segalla asked about the return check fee, to which Drew 
Klumpp answered that Daphne Utilities charges $25 which is industry standard. 

   
IX. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT 

A. GM Report 
Chairman Segalla and Lon Johnston gave admirable and praiseworthy recognition to the late Mayor Bailey Yelding and the 
positive impact he made on the City of Daphne and a moment of silence was given in his honor.  Mr. Johnston also 
recommended expediting the conclusion of sewering of the City of Daphne as a tribute to Mayor Yelding’s tireless efforts 
for this task. 
 
Danny Lyndall had nothing further to add to the report for the General Manager or Operations Report.  Drew Klumpp 
informed the Board of a policy he has prepared regarding bill payment and extensions policies for customers.  Chairman 
Segalla inquired of Deloris Brown of the “train the trainer” program for heavy equipment.  She informed him that previous 
training was on various equipment, but this was the first time offering the “train the trainer” program in house.   
 
Code Enforcement Officer Rex Rentz gave the Board a presentation on cross-connection contamination prevention. 
 
Melinda Immel advised the Board that the final inspection of the Bayview Lift Station project was complete; this station 
along with the by-pass pump is operational.  Danny Lyndall answered Chairman Segalla’s question regarding the project 
budget.  He stated that Daphne Utilities was well under budget for the Bayview Lift Station.  Melinda Immel additionally 
answered questions pertaining to upcoming lift-station projects priority.  
 
Ray Moore had nothing to add to his report. 
 

X. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION – Ruth Bolton addressed the Board to thank the Daphne Utility Board for the support of the  
      family for Mayor Bailey Yelding. 

128 4/15/2013 CM



 

MINUTES - 3 

 

 

 

XI. BOARD ACTION –  
RESOLUTION 2013-01 – Easements for Jubilee Square Shopping Center 

 

MOTION BY Lon Johnston approve Resolution 2013-01 Easements for Jubilee Square Shopping 
Center; Seconded by Randy Fry. 

AYE: Johnston, Fry, Segalla,                            ABSENT: Jenkins ABSTAIN:                          MOTION CARRIED  

 
XII. BOARD COMMENTS – None 

 
Jerry Speegle recommended executive session to 1) discuss the general reputation, character and possibly job-
performance of certain non-public employees, 2) also for the possibility of pending or threaten litigation for 

approximately 30 minutes. 
 
Chairman Segalla advised no additional business will be discussed after executive session. 

 

MOTION BY Lon Johnston to adjourn for Executive Session for the purpose of discussing the general 
reputation, character and possibly job-performance of certain non-public employees, and also 2) for the 
possibility of pending or threaten litigation for approximately 30 minutes; Seconded by Randy Fry. 

AYE: Johnston, Fry, Segalla,                            ABSENT: Jenkins ABSTAIN:                          MOTION CARRIED  

 
Executive session adjourned at 5:32 pm. 

 

XIII. ADJOURNMENT – 
 

MOTION BY Lon Johnston to adjourn the meeting; Seconded by Randy Fry. 

AYE: Johnston, Fry, Segalla,                           ABSENT:  Jenkins  ABSTAIN:                          MOTION CARRIED  

 
The meeting adjourned at 5:15 pm.  

129 4/15/2013 CM



 

 

 

REPORT  

OF  

OFFICERS 

130 4/15/2013 CM



131 4/15/2013 CM



132 4/15/2013 CM



133 4/15/2013 CM



REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS (RFQ) 
For Engineering Services 

City of Daphne 

 

 
The City of Daphne seeks proposals from qualified firms or individuals to provide engineering 
and other professional services related to Civil Engineering/Surveying for Transportation and 
Drainage Infrastructure Projects. 
 
Professional Engineering Services – Minimum Qualifications 
 

1. Be full service Engineering Firm offering Land Survey and Civil Engineering services 
maintaining a main or divisional office in Baldwin County, Alabama. 

2. Hold a Certificate of Authorization in Land Surveying and Engineering from the Alabama 
State Board of Licensure for Professional Engineers and Land Surveyors. 

3. Maintain a resident Professional (Civil) Engineer in a Baldwin County Office. 
4. Meet the City’s minimum Insurance coverage requirements. 
5. Have expertise and experience in CIVIL ENGINEERING FOR TRANSPORTATION and 

DRAINAGE INFRASTRUCTURE. 
6. Have Municipal and Utility experience in Baldwin or Mobile Counties. 
7. Be PRE-QUALIFIED with ALDOT for consultants with service type(s): CONSTRUCTION 

ENGINEERING & INSPECTION (CITY/COUNTY) – with active contracts. 
 
Automatic Disqualifier – No Engineering Firm will be considered for Qualification by the City if 
currently in litigation with the City of Daphne. No reconsideration will be made by the City until 
12 months have passed from the time of agreeable resolution of the litigation. 
 
 
Professional Services Categories: 
 

A. Civil Engineering/Surveying for Transportation and Drainage Infrastructure 
Projects: The City maintains a Capital Improvement and Capital Maintenance Project 
List that is executed as capital dollars become available. The City desires to prequalify 
Engineering Firms and begin assigning these Projects to all pre-qualified Engineering 
Firms on an equitable rotation basis. 

 
 
Proposal Details: 
 
Proposals will be received until 4:00 P.M. (C.S.T.) on April 29, 2013 at City of Daphne Public 
Works Department, P.O. Box 400, 26435 Public Works Road, Daphne, AL 36526. Late 
proposals will not be considered. There will be no formal bid opening. 
 
No facsimiles or emailed proposals will be accepted. Provide two (2) paper and one (1) PDF on 
disk in the submittal. 
 
The City of Daphne reserves the right to (1) reject any or all proposals not in compliance with 
RFQ procedures if it is in the best interest of the public to do so, (2) to take no action on the 
accepted RFQ’s (3) waive informalities in the proposals, (4) to select the proposals which 
appear to be in the best interest of the City, and (5) limit the number of qualifying firms to be 
selected. 
 
 
 

134 4/15/2013 CM



REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS (RFQ) 
For Engineering Services 

City of Daphne 

 

 
 
Proposal Content: 
 
For consistency in proposals, please arrange content in the order listed in the table below, i.e., 
introductory letter first, information about insurance coverage second, etc. Please note the 
maximum number of pages allowed for each section.  An explanation of the information sought 
about the content is set out below. 
 

Proposal Content Maximum No. of Pages 

1. Introductory Letter 1 

2. Insurance Coverage 1 

3. Firm Qualifications 2 

4. Resident Professional (Civil) Engineer Qualifications 1 

5. Key Personnel Qualifications 3 

6. Quality of Municipal and Utility Client Service 4 

7. Supporting Information (including Resident Engineer’s 
resume, office location, and key personnel resumes) No Limit 

 
1. INTRODUCTORY LETTER 

An executive summary of the firm’s history and relationship to the community including a 
statement in the letter naming the person or persons authorized to represent the 
consultant in any negotiations and sign any contract that may result.  
 

2. INSURANCE COVERAGE 
Coverage shall meet or exceed the City's required insurance coverage as described in 
the City’s Professional Services Agreement. Provide a statement indicating that the firm 
has in effect or can obtain the insurance coverage required by the City (do not provide 
insurance certificates with the proposal). 
 

3. FIRM QUALIFICATIONS 
Provide a statement that portrays the firm's qualifications as related to the local office 
and experience in relation to the described work. The response should address the 
following: 
a. General qualifications and experience of the firm. Please limit information to that 

which is specific to the local office. 
b. Specific areas of expertise applicable to the described work. 
c. Similar projects, by type, location and total project cost, which have been performed 

by the firm. Do not include projects that current personnel performed for another firm.  
(Please note proposals may be excluded from further consideration if projects are 
included that the firm did not perform) 

d. If including a subconsultant, include their role in the described work: prime consultant 
or sub-consultant. 
 

135 4/15/2013 CM



REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS (RFQ) 
For Engineering Services 

City of Daphne 

 

 
 

4. RESIDENT PROFESSIONAL (CIVIL) ENGINEER QUALIFICATIONS 
Provide a statement that portrays how the qualifications and experience of the firm's 
proposed Resident Professional (Civil) Engineer relate to the described work. Only 
provide information for those personnel that the firm is proposing to perform the work. 
Qualifications should describe experience as it relates to municipal and/or utility work. 
 

5. KEY PERSONNEL QUALIFICATIONS 
Provide a statement that portrays how the qualifications and experience of the firm's 
proposed key personnel relate to the described work. Only provide information for those 
personnel that the firm is proposing to perform the work. Under this contract, the 
response should address the following: 
a. Qualifications and experience of principals and proposed key personnel with respect 

to the work as described in this RFQ. Identify any applicable registrations. Clearly 
note projects performed by personnel that were performed for another firm. 

a. If subconsultants are included to assemble a project team, their qualifications and 
experience of proposed key personnel should be described with respect to the 
relevant category or subcategory of work. 

 
6. QUALITY OF MUNICIPAL and UTILITY CLIENT SERVICE 

One of the City's interests will be the commitment of the consultant’s project team during 
the life of the project. The consultant’s demonstrated commitment to the project will be a 
consideration in future engagements with the consulting firm. Provide a statement (4 
pages) that demonstrates the quality of service provided to Municipal and/or Utility 
clients and provide a minimum of five references with the names, addresses and 
telephone numbers of current and past clients for whom the proposer has provided 
similar professional services. 
 

7. SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
This supporting information at a minimum shall include Resident Engineer’s resume, 
office location and key personnel resumes. The proposer may also include any other 
information deemed pertinent to this RFQ. 

 
 
Questions or Additional Information: 
 
Richard D. Johnson, P.E. 
Public Works Director 
26435 Public Works Road 
Daphne, AL 36526 
  
Phone:     (251) 621-3182 
Fax:          (251) 621-3189 
Cell:         (251) 379-1305 
Email:  directorpw@daphneal.com  

136 4/15/2013 CM

mailto:directorpw@daphneal.com


 

 

 
WHEREAS, the City desires to use qualified Consulting Engineers to perform certain 
professional planning, programming, and engineering services as outlined in the Scope of 
Services; 
 
WHEREAS, the qualified Consulting Engineers desires to perform said professional services for 
the City; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual covenants hereinafter stipulated to 
be kept and performed, the parties (as listed in Appendix A) hereto agree as follows: 
 

ARTICLE I - SCOPE OF SERVICES 
 
The City will assign Projects to the pre-qualified Consulting Engineer (to be referred to as 
Engineer) on an equitable rotation basis. The Scope for each individual Project will be prepared 
by the City Public Works Director in conjunction with the selected Engineer. 
 
Once a Scope is agreed upon for a Project, the selected Engineer will prepare a Construction 
Cost Estimate and schedule required to complete that Project and will submit that to the City for 
approval. The professional services to be provided will be based on the enclosed fee schedule. 
Once the Project Scope and corresponding Professional Fee Cost Estimate and schedule have 
been approved by the City, a fee agreement will be prepared for that Project in accordance with 
Method of Payment. 
 
SECTION I - GENERAL SERVICES 
 
The Engineer shall perform certain professional engineering services relating to infrastructure 
improvements and other Projects as authorized by the City, as follows: 
 

A. Survey, Design, and Letting 
 
1. Attend meetings regarding proposed projects. 

2. Prepare preliminary layouts and sketches if needed. 

3. Prepare preliminary construction cost estimates. 

4. Field surveys for design and layout. 

5. Design the work. 

6. Prepare detailed contract drawings and specifications for construction. 

7. Prepare construction estimates of quantities and cost. 

8. Assembling and mailing Contract Documents on behalf of the City. 

9. Assist the City in receiving bids. 

10. Tabulate bids and make recommendations concerning award. 

11. Assist the City in the award of the Contract. 

 
  

137 4/15/2013 CM



 

 

B. Construction Services 
 
1. Attend meeting with the City officials as required and assist in administering the 

construction contracts. 

2. Recover and/or furnish reference line and bench marks for control of the work. 

3. Review shop drawings and manufacturer’s drawings pertaining to the improvements 
for compliance with the design concept. 

4. Review laboratory, mill and shop tests of materials to be incorporated into the work. 

5. Provide field reviews of the work and interpret the plans and specifications by 
periodic visits to the site by one or more design engineers. 

6. Provide the services of a resident project representative, and assistants if required, 
in order that the work under progress shall have continuous close review. The 
ENGINEER will endeavor to protect the City against defects and deficiencies in the 
work of contractors, but does not guarantee the work or performance of the 
contractors. Duties, Responsibilities, and Limitations of Authority of Resident Project 
Representative have been attached to this Agreement in Appendix B. 

7. The ENGINEER is not responsible under this Agreement to act as foreman, 
superintendent, and safety engineer or for the safety of the contractor's personnel. 

8. Review and approve contractor's estimates for work performed for payment by the 
City. 

9. Make final review of the construction upon completion and revise the construction 
drawings to show the project "record drawing”, and certify that in accord with 
knowledge required to meet professional engineering standards of practice, the 
project was built in accordance with the Construction Contract Plans and 
Specifications. 

10. Field measure pay quantity items of work for preparation of final construction 
estimate for approval by contractor and payment by the City. 

11. The City will provide Laboratory services for all soils studies and reports and for all 
inspectors and tests requiring the services of a laboratory throughout the 
construction of the project. 

12. The ENGINEER will furnish the City with up to a reasonable number of sets of all 
plans, reports, and specifications. Additional sets will be furnished at cost. 

 

C. Work Not Included 
 

Specialized services, unless specifically stated in the established Project Scope, such as 
laboratory testing of materials, subsurface borings and activities of a similar nature, which 
require specialized equipment and technicians are not part of this Agreement. These special 
services also include the performance of property, or boundary surveys, services on 
calculations of special assessment, or operating manuals and operator training. The 
ENGINEER is not responsible under this Agreement to audit contractor's payrolls or records, 
or to check payrolls for compliance with wage rates or to act as foreman, superintendent, 
safety engineer, or for the safety of the contractors personnel, or to enforce governmental 

138 4/15/2013 CM



 

 

clauses made part of the construction contract as to consideration of the City receiving 
governmental loans or grants. 

 

SECTION II - SPECIAL SERVICES 

At the written request of the City, the Engineer shall accomplish such special services as 
required by the City. When the Engineer is requested to provide special services, such services 
may be provided by Engineer's own forces or through subcontracts with other professionals. 
However, contracts with other professionals for special services must have the written approval 
of the City before the work is initiated. Special services which may be requested include, but are 
not necessarily limited to the following: 

A. Land Surveys and Engineering as necessary to establish property boundaries and 
prepare descriptions, and prepare property maps required for property right-of-way or 
easement acquisition purposes.  

B. Soils and Material Investigations including test borings, laboratory and field testing of 
soils and materials and related reports as required for design and construction quality 
control purposes. 

C. Engineering Surveys (other than required for design and construction) to include 
topographic surveys, base fine surveys, cross section surveys, aerial photography, etc., 
as required and approved by the City. 

D. Assistance to the City as expert witness in litigation arising from development or 
construction of any project. 

E. Accomplishment of special surveys and investigations, and the preparation of special 
reports and drawings as may be requested or authorized in writing by the City. 

F. Prepare pre-applications and applications for federal and/or state assistance grants for 
funding of projects. 

G. Assist the City, or other engineers engaged by the City, as requested in the development 
of information required to complete and submit permit applications or permit compliance 
responses. 

H. Attend meetings with the City and other governmental agencies as requested during 
planning and permitting processes. 

I. Perform other services as requested by the City. 

 

ARTICLE II - GENERAL PROVISIONS 

 

SECTION I - RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE CITY 
 
The Engineer agrees to provide professional services for all services included in Article I - 
Scope of Services and the City agrees to pay the Engineer as compensation for its services as 
specified below: 
 
Fees - It is mutually agreed that compensation to the ENGINEER will be as follows: 
 

 

139 4/15/2013 CM



 

 

A. For all work associated with Survey, Design, and Letting as specified in General 
Services, the fee shall be based on either (a) a percentage of the estimated* construction 
cost of each individual construction project as specified below, or (b) a lump sum basis 
for each individual construction project, as authorized by the City. 

 
*If the project is undertaken by the City, fees shall be corrected based on “Actual” 
Construction cost. 

 
The percentage of construction cost for determination of Survey, Design, and Letting 
fees based on a percentage of construction costs shall be in accordance with the 
following: 
 

CONSTRUCTION COSTS 
SURVEY, DESIGN, & LETTING 

PHASE – FEE % 

$ $ GDBP* RRR** 

Less than $  100,000 10.5% 9% 

$  100,000 $  250,000 9.5% 8% 

$  250,000 $  500,000 8.5% 7% 

$  500,000 $  750,000 7.75% 6.25% 

$  750,000 $1,000,000 7.5% 6% 

$1,000,000 $2,000,000 7% 5.5% 

$2,000,000 $4,000,000 6.75% 5.25% 

$4,000,000 And above 6.25% 5% 
 

 *GDBP – Grading, Drainage, Base, and Pavement Projects 
  
 **RRR - Resurfacing, Restoration and Rehabilitation Projects 
 

It is mutually agreed that the ENGINEER's Design fee by this method shall not be less 
for construction cost in the lower range of one construction step than is available by 
utilizing the maximum construction cost and percentage for the preceding lower 
construction step. 

 

For all work associated with Survey, Design, and Letting required to complete detailed 
plans and specifications for individual construction projects, payment shall be made 
periodically, based on City approved percentage of completion of the plans and 
specifications for each project. 

 
B. For all work associated with construction services as specified in Construction Services, 

the fee shall be based on either (a) a percentage of the construction cost of each 
individual construction project as specified below, or (b) a lump sum basis for each 
individual construction project, as authorized by the City. The percentage of construction 

140 4/15/2013 CM



 

 

costs for determination of construction services fees based on a percentage of 
construction costs shall be in accordance with the following: 

 

CONSTRUCTION COSTS 
CONSTRUCTION (CE&I) PHASE – 

FEE % 

$ $ GDBP* RRR** 

Less than $  100,000 12.75% 11.25% 

$  100,000 $  250,000 11.5% 10% 

$  250,000 $  500,000 10.5% 9% 

$  500,000 $  750,000 9.5% 8% 

$  750,000 $1,000,000 9.25% 7.75% 

$1,000,000 $2,000,000 8% 6.5% 

$2,000,000 $4,000,000 7.75% 6.25% 

$4,000,000 And above 7.5% 6% 
 
 *GDBP – Grading, Drainage, Base, and Pavement Projects 
  
 **RRR - Resurfacing, Restoration and Rehabilitation Projects 
 

It is mutually agreed that the ENGINEER's Construction Services fee by this method 
shall not be less for construction cost in the lower range of one construction step than is 
available by utilizing the maximum construction cost and percentage for the preceding 
lower construction step. 
 
The length of time covered by the above fee shall be the length of time in calendar days 
in which construction contractors will have to complete the various contracts and will be 
agreed upon by the City and the ENGINEER prior to issuance of contact documents and 
will be so stated therein. The City will reimburse the Engineer for Construction Phase 
Services required in completion of the project beyond the agreed to calendar days due 
to the delinquency or insolvency of the contractor or for any reason beyond the control of 
the Engineer, other than time extensions granted the contractor due to an increase in the 
scope of work. 
 
No additional compensation shall be paid to the Engineer until project time is exceeded 
110% of contracted calendar days. Compensation shall be made on the basis of on a 
cost of average daily fee basis calculated as follows:   
 

 

 
Payment to be made within 30 days after receipt of certified invoices by the Engineer. 
 

C. For all work associated with Special Services as specified in that section, The City shall 
submit a scope of work requested to the selected or qualified engineer(s). The selected 

141 4/15/2013 CM



 

 

or qualified engineer(s) shall submit a “lump sum” quote for the Special Services outlined 
in the scope of work. The selected or qualified engineer(s) shall be paid on a lump sum 
basis for each individual Special Service construction project, as authorized by the City. 
The quoted fee shall remain fixed unless the City changes the scope of work significantly 
altering construction cost or quantities in excess 10% of the original bid cost. Prior to 
acceptance of the change order or a significant change in scope of work, the engineer 
must submit an amended quote for approval. This fee change should correlate with the 
same percentage rate increase of the construction cost.   
 

D. Partial payments for all services performed by the Engineer under the terms of the 
Agreement shall be made no more often than monthly to the Engineer by the City upon 
receipt and approval of invoices and other evidence of performance as may be deemed 
necessary by the City. The City is allowed up to forty-five (45) days of the date of invoice 
to make payment of properly submitted and approved invoices. 
  

E. For Projects involving a supplemental agreement, the scope of services and amount of 
compensation to be paid will be included herein. 

 
F. The City will pay the Engineer for special services performed by sub-consultants at the 

actual invoice amount times a factor of 1.10 for assisting and coordinating the sub-
consultants services. Prior to the City authorizing the employment of sub-consultants, 
the full provisions of Article II, Section I, Subsection C apply. 
 

G. The City as purchaser of the services described herein shall pay any applicable sales 
tax in the manner and in the amount as required by law. 
 

SECTION III - MISCELLANEOUS 
 

A. Extra Work: It is mutually understood and agreed that the City will compensate the 
Engineer for services resulting from significant changes in general scope of a project or 
its design, including but not necessarily limited to, change in size, complexity. Project 
schedules, character of construction, revisions to previously accepted studies, reports, 
design documents or contract documents and for preparation of documents for separate 
bids, when such revisions are due to causes beyond the Engineer control and when 
requested or authorized by the City. Compensation for such extra work when authorized 
by the City shall be mutually agreed upon prior to beginning the extra work. 

 
B. Extra Work caused by deficiency in design: It is mutually understood and agreed that 

extra work cause by errors and omissions of the engineer shall not be subject to 
compensation by the City and shall be the sole burden of the engineer. In addition if said 
deficiencies in design lead to project time overruns the obligation of the engineer to 
manage the construction remains without any expectation of compensation for the 
additional time. 

 
C. Ownership of Documents and Electronic Media: All documents and electronic media 

including Drawings, CAD files and Specifications prepared or furnished by Engineer (and 
Engineer's independent professional associates and consultants) pursuant to this 
Agreement are instruments produced for and shall be owned by the City. If these 
documents are reused by the City or others on extensions of the Project or on any other 
project will be at Owner's sole risk and without liability or legal exposure to the original 
Engineer, or to Engineer independent professional associates or consultants, and the 

142 4/15/2013 CM



 

 

City shall indemnify and hold harmless the Engineer and Engineer's independent 
professional associates and consultants from all claims, damages, losses and expenses 
including attorney's fees arising out of or resulting therefrom.  
 

D. Responsibility of the Engineer: The Engineer shall be responsible for the professional 
quality, technical accuracy, timely completion, and the coordination of all designs, 
drawings, specifications, reports, and other services furnished by the Engineer under 
this Agreement. These services when performed in accordance with acceptable 
engineering and architectural practices shall be the limit of the Engineers responsibility 
under this Agreement. The Engineer shall, without additional compensation, correct or 
revise any errors, omissions or other deficiencies in his designs, drawings, 
specifications, reports and other services. 
 

E. Responsibility for Claims and Liability: To the fullest extent permitted by law, the total 
liability, in the aggregate, of Engineer and Engineer's officers, directors, employees, 
agents and independent professional associates and consultants, and of any of them I to 
the City and anyone claiming by, through or under the City, for any and all injuries, 
claims, losses, expenses, or damages whatsoever arising out of or in any way related to 
Engineer's services, the project or this agreement from any cause or causes 
whatsoever, including but not limited to the negligence, errors, omissions, strict liability 
or breach of contract Engineers or Engineer's officers, director, employees, agents or 
independent professional associates or consultants, or any of them, shall be the 
maximum compensation required to satisfy all injuries, claims, losses, expenses, or 
damages, including punitive damages.  
 

F. Insurance: Engineer shall furnish the City with Certificate of Insurance from a carrier 
approved by the Finance Director confirming following coverages: 

 
Comprehensive and Business Liability 
 
Bodily Injury and Property Damage   Limits of Liability 

Each Occurrence $500,000.00 
General Aggregate $2,000,000.00 
Products Completed  
Operations Aggregate $2,000,000.00 
 

Workers' Compensation and Employers Liability 
 
 Workers' Compensation Statutory    

Bodily Injury  
Each Accident $100,000.00 
Disease Each Employee $100,000.00 
Disease - Policy Limit $500,000.00 

 
 Automobile 
 

Bodily Injury Per Person/Occurrence $500,000.00/$500,000.00 
Property Damage $100,000.00 
Uninsured Motorist Per Person/Occurrence $100,000.00/$300,000.00 

 

143 4/15/2013 CM



 

 

G. Termination: In the event of failure by the Engineer to fulfill in timely and proper manner 
his obligations under this Agreement, or if the Engineer violates any of the covenants, 
contracts, or stipulations of this Agreement, the City shall thereupon have the right to 
terminate that Engineer’s involvement in this Agreement by written notice to the 
Engineer of such termination, specifying the effective date thereof at least five days 
before the effective date of such termination. 

 
H. Contract Period: All contracts, agreements, provisions and stipulations of this Agreement 

shall remain in full force for a period of three (3) years from the date of the Agreement, 
and for such periods as the contract time may be extended by mutual written agreement 
between the City and the participating Engineer(s). 
 

I. Successors and Assigns: 
1. The City and Engineer each is hereby bound and the partners, successors, 

executors, administrators and legal representatives of the City and Engineer (and 
to the extent permitted by paragraph 2, the assigns of the City and Engineer) are 
hereby bound to the other party to this Agreement and to the partners, 
successors, executors, administrators and legal representatives (and said 
assigns) of such other party, in respect of all covenants, agreements and 
obligations of this Agreement. 

2. Neither the City nor Engineer shall assign, sublet or transfer any rights under or 
interest in (including, but without limitation, moneys that may become due or 
moneys that are due) this Agreement without written consent of the other, except 
to the extent that any assignment, subletting or transfer is mandated by law or 
the effect of this limitation may be restricted by law. Unless specifically stated to 
the contrary in any written consent to an assignment, no assignment will release 
or discharge the assignor from any duty or responsibility under this Agreement. 
Nothing contained in this paragraph shall prevent Engineer from employing such 
independent professional associates and consultants as Engineer may deem 
appropriate to assist in performance of services hereunder. 

3. Nothing under this Agreement shall be construed to give any right or benefits in 
this Agreement to anyone other than the City and Engineer, and all duties and 
responsibilities undertaken pursuant to this Agreement will be for the sole and 
exclusive benefit of the City and Engineer and not for the benefit of any other 
party. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have made and executed this Agreement in 
duplicate as of the ________ day of ___________________, 20_________. 
 
 
ATTEST:       The City of Daphne 
 
 
 
 
              
Signature       Signature 
City Clerk       Mayor 
  

144 4/15/2013 CM



 

 

Appendix A – Approved Consulting Engineers 
 
 
 
1. Firm 

Address 
City, State, Zip     ATTEST: 
  
 
 
             
Signature      Signature 
 
 
 
             
Title       Title 
 
 

2. Firm 
Address 
City, State, Zip     ATTEST: 
  
 
 
             
Signature      Signature 
 
 
 
             
Title       Title 
 
 

3. Firm 
Address 
City, State, Zip     ATTEST: 
  
 
 
             
Signature      Signature 
 
 
 
             
Title       Title 
 
 
 

 

145 4/15/2013 CM



 

 

Appendix A – Approved Consulting Engineers (Continued) 
 
 
 
4. Firm 

Address 
City, State, Zip     ATTEST: 
  
 
 
             
Signature      Signature 
 
 
 
             
Title       Title 
 
 

5. Firm 
Address 
City, State, Zip     ATTEST: 
  
 
 
             
Signature      Signature 
 
 
 
             
Title       Title 
 
 

6. Firm 
Address 
City, State, Zip     ATTEST: 
  
 
 
             
Signature      Signature 
 
 
 
             
Title       Title 

 
 
 
 

146 4/15/2013 CM



 

 

Appendix B – Resident Construction Surveillance Representative (Page 1/3) 
 
 

A. General 
 
Resident Construction Surveillance Representative is Engineer's Agent, will act as directed 
by and under the supervision of Engineer, and will confer with Engineer regarding his 
actions. Resident Construction Surveillance Representative's dealings in matters pertaining 
to the on-site work shall in general be only with the Engineer and Contractor, and dealings 
with subcontractors shall only be through or with the full knowledge of Contractor. Written 
communication with the City will be only through or as directed by Engineer. 

 
 

B. Duties and Responsibilities 
 

Resident Construction Surveillance Representative will: 
 
1. Conferences: Attend preconstruction conferences. Attend progress meetings and other 

job conferences as required in consultation with Engineer. 
 

2. Schedules: Review the progress schedule, schedule of Shop Drawing submissions and 
schedule of values prepared by Contractor. 

 
3. Representative: 

 
a. Serve as Engineer's Representative with Contractor, working principally through 

Contractors superintendent and assist him in understanding the intent of the 
Contract Documents. Assist Engineer in serving as the City's Representative with 
Contractor when Contractor's operations affect the City's on-site operations. 
 

b. As requested by Engineer, assist in obtaining from the City additional details or 
information, when required at the job site for proper execution of the Work. 

 
4. Advise Engineer and Contractor or its superintendent immediately of the 

commencement of any Work requiring a Shop Drawing or sample submission if the 
submission has not been approved by Engineer. 

 
5. Review of Work, Rejection of Defective Work, Inspections and Tests: 

 
a. Conduct, on-site observations of the Work in progress to assist Engineer in 

determining if the Work is in general proceeding in accordance with the Contract 
Documents. 
 

b. Report to Engineer whenever he believes that any work is unsatisfactory, faulty 
or defective or does not conform to the Contract Documents, or does not meet 
the requirements of any inspections, tests or approval required to be made or 
had been damaged prior to final payment; and advise Engineer when he believes 
Work should be corrected or rejected or should be uncovered for observation, or 
requires special testing, inspection or approval. 

 
 

147 4/15/2013 CM



 

 

Appendix B – Resident Construction Surveillance Representative (Page 2/3) 
 

 
c. Verify that tests, equipment and systems start-ups and operating and 

maintenance instructions are conducted as required by the Contract instructions 
are conducted as required by the Contract Documents and in presence of the 
required personnel', and that Contractor maintains adequate records thereof; 
observe, record and report to Engineer appropriate details relative to the test 
procedures and start-ups. 

 
d. Accompany visiting inspectors representing public or other agencies having 

jurisdiction over the Project, record the outcome of these inspections and report 
to Engineer. 

 
6. Interpretation of Contract Documents: Transmit to Contractor Engineer's clarifications 

and interpretations of the Contract Documents. 
 

7. Modifications: Consider and evaluate Contractors suggestions for modifications in 
Drawings or Specifications and report them with recommendations to Engineer. 
 

8. Records and Reports: 
 

a. Maintain at the job site orderly files for correspondence, reports of job 
conferences, Shop Drawings and samples, submissions, reproductions of 
original Contract Documents including all addenda, change orders, field orders, 
additional Drawings issued subsequent to the execution of the Contract, 
Engineer's clarifications and interpretations of the Contract Documents, Progress 
Reports, and other Project related documents. 
 

b. Keep a diary or log book recording hours on the job site, weather conditions, data 
relative to questions of extras or deductions, list of visiting officials and 
representatives of manufacturers, fabricators, suppliers and distributors, daily 
activities,' decisions, observations in general and specific observations in more 
detail as in the case of observing test procedures. Send copies to Engineer. 

 
c. Record names, addresses and telephone numbers of all Contractors, 

subcontractors and major suppliers of materials and equipment. 
 

d. Furnish Engineer periodic reports as required of the Work and Contractor's 
compliance with the approved progress schedule. 

 
e. Consult with Engineer in advance of scheduling major tests, inspections or start 

of important phases of the Work. 
 

f. Report immediately to Engineer upon the occurrence of any accident. 
 

9. Payment Requisitions: Review applications for payment with Contractor for compliance 
with the established procedure for their submission and forward them with 
recommendations to Engineer, noting particularly their relation to the schedule of values, 
Work completed and materials and equipment delivered at the site but not incorporated 
in the Work. 

148 4/15/2013 CM



 

 

Appendix B – Resident Construction Surveillance Representative (Page 3/3) 
 
 

10. Completion: 
 

a. Before Engineer issues a Certificate of Substantial Completion, submit to 
Contractor a list of observed items requiring completion of correction. 
 

b. Conduct final inspection in the company of the Engineer, the city and the 
Contractor and prepare a final list of items to be completed or corrected. 
 

c. Verify that all items on final list have been completed or corrected and make 
recommendations to Engineer concerning acceptance. 

 
 

C. Limitations of Authority 
 

Except upon written instructions of Engineer, Resident Construction Surveillance 
Representative: 
 
 
1. Shall not authorize any deviation from the Contract Documents or approve any 

substitute materials or equipment. 
 

2. Shall not exceed limitations on Engineer's authority as set forth in the Contract 
Documents. 

 
3. Shall not undertake any of the responsibilities of Contractor, subcontractors or 

Contractor's superintendent. 
 

4. Shall not advise on or issue directions relative to any aspect of the means, methods, 
techniques, sequences of procedures of construction. 

 
5. Shall not advise on or issue directions as to safety precautions and programs in 

connection with the Work. 
 

6. Shall not authorize the City to occupy the Project in-whole or in part, unless it is in the 
City's best interest. 

 
7. Shall not participate in specialized field or laboratory test, unless directed by the City. 

 
8. Shall not accept shop drawings or submittals, as these shall be made to the Engineer. 

149 4/15/2013 CM



150 4/15/2013 CM



151 4/15/2013 CM



152 4/15/2013 CM



153 4/15/2013 CM



154 4/15/2013 CM



155 4/15/2013 CM



 

 

 

RESOLUTIONS 

& 

ORDINANCES 

156 4/15/2013 CM



RESOLUTION 2013 - 24 
 
 

A RESOLUTION DECLARING CERTAIN PERSONAL PROPERTY SURPLUS  AND 

AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO DISPOSE OF SUCH PROPERTY 
 
 
WHEREAS,  the Department Heads of the City of Daphne have determined that the items listed 
below are no longer required for public or municipal purposes;  and 
 
WHEREAS, the items listed below are recommended for disposal. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED,  by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Daphne 
that  
 

1- The property listed below is hereby declared to be surplus property, and 
     

    

DEPT EQ/VEH#          DESCRIPTION                                                VIN VIN # / SERIAL # 
    
     Mowing      1199    1994 GMC C3500 TRUCK            1GDJC34N4RE530289 
 
 
          2- The Mayor is authorized to advertise and accept bids through Govdeals.com as  
               contracted for the sale of such personal property, and 
 
          3-  The Mayor is authorized to sell said property to the highest bidder and deposit any and      
               all  proceeds to the General Fund.  The Mayor is further authorized to direct the           
               dispositionof any property which is not claimed by any bidder. 
 
 
ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, 

ALABAMA, this               day of                   , 2013. 
           
 

        

                                                                                                                                                                                           

_____________________________ 

                                                                              Dane Haygood, Mayor 

       

 

ATTEST: 

___________________________ 

Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk 

157 4/15/2013 CM



CITY OF DAPHNE 

RESOLUTION 2013-25 
 

Acceptance of Right-of-Way located from  

Well Road to County Road 13       
                             

 Whereas, the Baldwin County Board of Education, hereby granted unto the City of Daphne, Alabama 

that certain permanent right-of-way and easement located from Well Road to County Road 13 and more 

particularly described herein; and, 

 

 Whereas, the City Council of the City of Daphne, Alabama has received notice that the Planning 

Commission of the City of Daphne in its regularly scheduled meeting of March 28, 2013 reviewed the proposal 

for acceptance of said right-of-way and granted favorable recommendation for the acceptance of the same; and, 

 

 Whereas, the City Council of the City of Daphne believes it is in the best interest of the citizens of the 

City for the City to accept said permanent right-of-way and easement; and, 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF DAPHNE, that the below described permanent right-of-way and easement located from Well Road 

to County Road 13 is hereby accepted by the City of Daphne, Alabama as a City right-of-way for maintenance: 
 

BEGINNING AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF 

SECTION 16, TOWNSHIP 5 SOUTH, RANGE 2 EAST, BALDWIN COUNTY, ALABAMA; 

THENCE RUN N-0021'00"-E, 120,00 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE RUN S-8939'50"-E, 

2607.31 FEET TO A POINT ON THE WEST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF COUNTY ROAD 

13; THENCE RUN S-0025'10"-W, ALONG' SAID WEST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE, 120.00 

FEET TO A POINT; THENCE RUN N-8939'50"-W, LEAVING SAID WEST 

RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE, 2607.16 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING, CONTAINING 

7.18 ACRES, MORE OR LESS. 

 

ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE MAYOR AND THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, 

ALABAMA ON THIS THE ________ DAY OF _____________________, 2013. 

 

 THE CITY OF DAPHNE, 

   AN ALABAMA MUNICIPAL CORPORATION 

      

 

                                                                

   ____________________________________ 

    DANE HAYGOOD, 

    MAYOR    

   

                  

ATTEST: 

 

 

______________________________________ 

REBECCA A. HAYES, 

 CITY CLERK 

158 4/15/2013 CM



159 4/15/2013 CM



160 4/15/2013 CM



161 4/15/2013 CM



162 4/15/2013 CM



163 4/15/2013 CM



CITY OF DAPHNE 
 

RESOLUTION 2013 -26 
 

Acceptance of Street and Drainage 

Located in the Tiawasee Trace Subdivision 

                                    
Whereas, the Planning Commission of Daphne granted final plat approval for Tiawasee Trace 

Subdivision on  August 28, 1997 and for Estates of Tiawasee Subdivision on September 25, 2008; and,  

 

 Whereas, the City Council of the City of Daphne, Alabama accepted streets and drainage for Tiawasee 

Trace subdivision as recorded in the Baldwin County Judge of Probate Office as slide #1778-B, on April 19, 

1999, Resolution 1999-30; and,  

 

 Whereas, the City Council of the City of Daphne, Alabama accepted streets and drainage for  

The Estates of Tiawasee subdivision as recorded in the Baldwin County Judge of Probate Office as slide  #2407-

F in April 6, 2009, Resolution 2009-21; and,  

  

 Whereas, a portion of North Lamhatty Lane was not included in either Resolution for acceptance, an 

inspection was made by the Director of the Division of Public Works, and has recommended acceptance of said 

right-of-way;  

 

 Whereas, the City Council of the City of Daphne, Alabama has received notice that the Planning 

Commission of the City of Daphne in its regularly scheduled meeting of March 28, 2013 reviewed the proposal 

and made a favorable recommendation for the acceptance of the same; and, 

 

 Whereas, the City Council of the City of Daphne believes it is in the best interest of the citizens of the 

City for the City to accept said right-of-way; and, 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF DAPHNE, that the below described right-of-way, a portion of North Lamhatty Lane, contained 

within Tiawasee Trace Subdivision is hereby accepted by the City of Daphne, Alabama as a city street for 

maintenance: 

 
From the western corner of Lot 14 (POINT OF BEGINNING), Tiawasee Trace Subdivision, as 

recorded with the Judge of Probate on Slide 1778-B, Section 9, Township 5 South, Range 2 East, 

Baldwin County, Alabama, thence run North 43
o
-49’-06” West, 60.0 feet to a point, thence run 

South 46
o
-10’-26” West ± 209 feet to a point, thence run North 58

o
-15’-47” West 61.91 feet to a 

point, thence run North 46
o
-10’-26” East ± 196 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING, containing 

0.28 ± acres more or less. 

 
ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE MAYOR AND THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

DAPHNE, ALABAMA ON THIS THE ________ DAY OF _____________________, 2013. 

 

 THE CITY OF DAPHNE, 

   AN ALABAMA MUNICIPAL CORPORATION 

                                              

 

   ___________________________  

    DANE HAYGOOD, MAYOR  

ATTEST: 

 

 

_____________________________ 

REBECCA A. HAYES, CITY CLERK 

 

164 4/15/2013 CM



165 4/15/2013 CM



166 4/15/2013 CM



167 4/15/2013 CM



168 4/15/2013 CM



169 4/15/2013 CM



170 4/15/2013 CM



171 4/15/2013 CM



CITY OF DAPHNE  
 

RESOLUTION 2013-27 

Acceptance of Streets and Drainage 

Located in Caroline Woods Subdivision, Phase Two, B 

                                    

 Whereas, the City Council of the City of Daphne, Alabama has received notice that the Planning 

Commission of Daphne has given Final Plat approval to Caroline Woods Subdivision, Phase Two, B on 

February 28, 2013, and the City of Daphne hereby recommends acceptance of said street(s) located in 

Caroline Woods Subdivision, Phase Two, B; and, 

 

 Whereas, an inspection was made by the Director of Community Development. All reports, as well as, 

all other related documents have been provided stating that said streets and storm water drainage have been 

installed in conformity with city standards; and, 

 

 Whereas, an inspection was made by the Director of the Division of Public Works, and has accepted said 

streets and storm water drainage of Caroline Woods Subdivision, Phase Two, B; and, 

 

 Whereas, the Utilities Board of the City of Daphne has accepted the utilities of Caroline Woods 

Subdivision, Phase Two, B; and, 

 

 Whereas, the developer has provided to the City a two-year maintenance bond in the amount of 

$7,719.00 as required and requests acceptance and dedication of the same for maintenance of said 

improvements as outlined in Article XVII, entitled Procedures for Subdivision Review of the City of 

Daphne Land Use and Development Ordinance; and,  

  

 Whereas, the developer has caused the plat to be recorded on slide 2481-E of the records in the Baldwin 

County Judge of Probate Office; and, 

 

 Whereas, the City Council of the City of Daphne believes it is in the best interest of the citizens of the 

City for the City to accept said right-of-way; and, 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE 

AS FOLLOWS, that Caroline Woods Subdivision, Phase Two “B,” fifty-foot rights-of-ways being named 

Kari Lane (532 linear feet) and a portion of Barrington Lane (120 linear feet) are hereby accepted by the 

City of Daphne, Alabama as city streets for maintenance. 

 

ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE MAYOR AND THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

DAPHNE, ALABAMA ON THIS THE ________ DAY OF _____________________, 2013. 

 

THE CITY OF DAPHNE, 

AN ALABAMA MUNICIPAL CORPORATION 

                                                              

 

                               

      _______________________________ 

      DANE HAYGOOD, MAYOR    

   

ATTEST: 

 

______________________________________ 

REBECCA A. HAYES,  

CITY CLERK 

172 4/15/2013 CM



173 4/15/2013 CM



174 4/15/2013 CM



175 4/15/2013 CM



176 4/15/2013 CM



177 4/15/2013 CM



178 4/15/2013 CM



179 4/15/2013 CM



 

RESOLUTION NO. 2013-28           
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE CITY OF DAPHNE’S 

PARTICIPATION IN THE STATE OF ALABAMA SALES 

TAX HOLIDAY FOR THE YEAR 2013 
 

BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Daphne, Alabama as follows: 

 

  Section 1. Section 4 of Alabama Act No. 2006-574 grants municipal 

governments authority to provide for the exemption of certain covered items from the payment 

of municipal sales tax during a period commencing at 12:01 a.m. on the first Friday in August of 

each year and ending at twelve midnight the following Sunday under the same terms, conditions 

and definitions as provided for the state sales tax holiday. 

 

  Section 2. The City of Daphne grants approval for the exemption of certain 

covered items from the payment of municipal sales tax for the period commencing at 12:01 a.m. 

Friday, August 2, 2013 and ending at twelve midnight Sunday, August 4, 2013 under the same 

terms, conditions and definitions as provided for by Act No. 2006-574 and Alabama Department 

of Revenue Rule 810-6-3-.65. 

 

  Section 3. This Resolution shall become effective upon adoption. 

 

 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, Alabama, 

this the _______ day of  _____________, 2013. 

 

 

 

    ________________________________ 

    Dane Haygood, Mayor 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

____________________________ 

Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk 

180 4/15/2013 CM



 

RESOLUTION 2013-29 

 

 

RESOLUTION IN SUPPORT OF THE  

 
Auburn University’s Alabama-Mississippi Sea Grant Proposal for the creation of a modeling tool 

that will aid in the cost-efficient selection and placement of stormwater Low Impact Development 

(LID) best management practices (BMPs).  The BMPs will focus on protecting water quality by 

reducing overall sediment impacts in D’Olive Creek Watershed.   

 
 

 Whereas, the D’Olive Creek Watershed located on the Eastern Shore of Mobile Bay and 

including portions of the Cities of Daphne and Spanish Fort, and part of the unincorporated area of 

Baldwin County, Alabama drains 7,700 acres and contributes to the health and vitality of its receiving 

waters in Mobile Bay, and 

 Whereas, the landscape of this Watershed includes steep and rugged terrain with 23 miles of 

streams running through highly erodible soil types receiving, on average, five and a half feet of 

precipitation, annually, and 

 Whereas, the landscape of this Watershed has undergone extensive commercial and residential 

development since the 1970s, and  

Whereas, conversion of the natural landscape to impervious cover has caused increases in 

volume and velocity of stormwater runoff in this watershed resulting in increased flooding, channel 

erosion, degraded habitats and infrastructure, and deteriorated water quality in its tributaries and creeks  

ultimately transporting non-point source pollution and sediment into Mobile Bay, and 

 Whereas, five streams in this Watershed – D’Olive Creek, Tiawasee Creek, Joe’s Branch, and 

un-named tributaries to D’Olive and Tiawasee Creek – are listed on the 2010 Alabama 303(d) list for 

impairment by siltation caused by changing land uses, and 

 Whereas, of the 23 miles of streams in this Watershed, two miles have been currently 

substantially degraded, four miles are currently undergoing degradation, and six face potential 

degradation, and 

Whereas, a Comprehensive Watershed Management Plan for the D’Olive Creek, Tiawasee 

Creek, and Joe’s Branch Watersheds completed in August, 2010, provides evaluations of problems within 

this watershed and recommends conceptual corrective measures to address them, 

Whereas, the grant proposal’s modeling tool integrates simulation based on sound science and 

engineering principles with cost estimation tools and optimization to support users in selecting the best 

solutions on the basis of cost and effectiveness, 

Whereas, developers, resource managers, government officials, planners and others professional 

would benefit from the use of the modeling tool, 

Now, therefore be it resolved by the legislative body of the City of Daphne to support the 

Auburn University’s Alabama-Mississippi Sea Grant Proposal.  

 

 

 

 

181 4/15/2013 CM



 

RESOLUTION 2013-29               SUPPORT AUBURN UNIVERSITY GRANT            PAGE   2 

 

ADOPTED AND APPROVED THIS ______ DAY OF ___________, 2013. 

 

CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA 

AN ALABAMA MUNICIPAL CORPORATION 

 

 

 

 

     _____________________________________ 

DANE HAYGOOD, MAYOR 

 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

__________________________________ 

REBECCA A. HAYES, CITY CLERK 

  

 

182 4/15/2013 CM



CITY OF DAPHNE 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2013-20 

 

AN ORDINANCE TO PROVIDE A ONE-TIME DISCRETIONARY BONUS 

TO CERTAIN EMPLOYYEES 

 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Daphne, after due consideration, desires to provide 

certain current employees with a one-time discretionary bonus as an appreciation for their years 

of dedicated service to the City. 

 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

DAPHNE, ALABAMA AS FOLLOWS: 

 

SECTION I:  TERMS OF PROVISION OF BONUS 

1. That each current employee of the City who meets the eligibility requirements of this 

Ordinance shall be eligible for a one-time discretionary bonus as defined by this 

Ordinance. 

 

2. That as a first eligibility requirement, the employee must have been employed by the 

City for at least one (1) year as of the effective date of Ordinance 2012-58. 

 

3. That as a second eligibility requirement, the employee must have been at the 

maximum step of the pay grade applicable to such employee as of the effective date 

of Ordinance 2012-58 and thus did not receive an increase in pay during January 10-

23, 2 013 pay period as specified by Ordinance 2012-58. 

 

4. That the gross amount of the one-time discretionary bonus paid to each eligible 

employee shall be in the amount of 1.9% of the annual salary in effect for employee 

at the time of the adoption of this Ordinance. 

 

5. That the City shall withhold the usual required payroll taxes from the one-time 

discretionary bonus payment. 

 

6. That to allow sufficient processing time by the Payroll Department, the one-time 

discretionary bonus shall be paid on the first payday following the effective date of 

this Ordinance, whichever is later. 

 

183 4/15/2013 CM



ORDINANCE 2013-20            ONE-TIME DISCRETIONARY BONUS             PAGE   2 

 

 

SECTION II:  REPEALER 

That any Ordinance, or parts thereof, heretofore adopted by the City Council of the City of 

Daphne, Alabama, which is in conflict with this Ordinance be and is hereby repealed to the 

extent of such conflict. 

 

SECTION III: SEVERABILITY 

If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phase or portion of this Ordinance is for any reason 

held invalid or unconstitutional by any court of competent jurisdiction, such portion shall be 

deemed a separate, distinct and independent provision and such holding shall not affect the 

validity of the remaining portions hereof. 

 

SECTION IV: EFFECTIVE DATE 

This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after the date of its approval by the 

City Council of the City of Daphne, Alabama and publication as required by law. 

 

ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, 

ALABAMA on this _____ day of __________, 2013. 

 

 

       _________________________________ 

       Dane Haygood, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

__________________________ 

Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk 

 

 

 

184 4/15/2013 CM



 

ORDINANCE 2013-21              COUNCIL RULES OF PROCEDURE          PAGE  1 

 

CITY OF DAPHNE 

ORDINANCE 2013-21 
 

AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING THE RULES OF PROCEDURE IN ALL 

INSTANCES FOR MEETINGS OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

 
 BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, 

ALABAMA that the Order Procedure in All Instances for Meetings of the City Council shall be 

as follows: 

 

SECTION I: 

 

 That the Rules of Procedure herein contained shall govern the deliberations and meetings 

of all of the Council of the City of Daphne, Alabama. 

 

SECTION II: 

 

 That the regular meetings of the City Council shall be held on the first and third Mondays 

of each month, which meeting shall convene at 6:30 p.m. at the City Hall Council Chamber and 

all meetings, regular and special, shall be opened to the public, except when Council meets in 

executive session as authorized by State law.  The regularly scheduled work session will be held 

on the Monday between the first and second council meeting at 6:30 p.m. at the City Hall 

Council Chambers. 

 

SECTION III: 

 

 That special meetings may be held at the call of the presiding officer by serving notice on 

each member of the Council not less than twenty-four hours before the time set for such special 

called meeting.  All special meetings may be held as provided by Section 11-43-50 Code of 

Alabama, 1975 (as amended).  Furthermore, any two (2) Council members shall have the right to 

call for a special meeting.  Notice of all special meetings shall be posted on the council approved 

bulletin board and appropriate customary media notified, and shall be accessible to the public 

twenty-four hours prior to such scheduled meeting. 

 

SECTION IV: 

 

 A Quorum shall be determined as provided by Section 11-43-40, Code of Alabama, 1975, 

(as amended). 

           

SECTION V: 

 

 That the order of business of each council meeting shall be as follows: 

 

 1. Call to Order 

 

 2. Roll Call/Invocation/Pledge of Allegiance 

 

185 4/15/2013 CM



 

ORDINANCE 2013-21              COUNCIL RULES OF PROCEDURE          PAGE  2 

 

 3. Approval of the Minutes of the Previous Meeting(s) 

 

 4. Public Participation 

 

 5. Reports of Standing Committees: 

   Finance Committee 

   Building/Property Committee 

   Code Enforcement/Ordinance Committee  

   Public Safety    

   Public Works/Solid Waste Committee 

 

 6. Reports of Special Boards and Commissions 

   Board of Zoning Adjustment 

   Downtown Redevelopment Authority 

   Industrial Development Board 

   Library Board 

   Planning Commission 

   Recreation Board 

   Utility Board 

 

  7. Reports by Department Heads 

 

 8. Report of Officers: 

   a. Mayor’s Report 

   b. City Attorney’s Report 

   c. City Clerk’s Report 

 

 9. Resolution, Ordinances and Other Business 

  

 10. Council Comments 

 

 11. Adjournment 

 

SECTION VI: 

 

 That any item including all background material to be placed on agenda must be turned in 

by 5:00 p.m. on the Wednesday before the council meeting or work session to the City Clerk 

subject to the review of the Council President.  The council packet will be sent to the full City 

Council by 12:00 p.m. Friday before the City Council Meeting or work session. 

 

SECTION VII: 

 

 That no member shall speak more than twice on the same subject without permission of 

the presiding officer, and after all other council members have had the opportunity to speak. 

 

 

 

 

186 4/15/2013 CM



 

ORDINANCE 2013-21              COUNCIL RULES OF PROCEDURE          PAGE  3 

 

SECTION VIII: 

 

A. Public Participation. At the designated time in the order of business, any member of the 

public may address the City Council except that no person shall be allowed to address the 

Council on any matter which shall be the subject of a public hearing scheduled by the 

Council until the meeting under which the public hearing on that matter is scheduled to 

be heard.  No individual who is not a member of the City Council or the Mayor shall be 

allowed to address the same while in session without permission of the presiding officer 

and for not more than three (3) minutes, unless approved by the presiding officer.   

 

B. Presentations to Council.  An individual wishing to make a presentation to the council 

with permission of the Council President or Presiding Officer will be allowed 5 minutes.  

The individual must provide in writing a synopsis of the topic to be discussed to the City 

Clerk by the Wednesday before the council meeting at 5:00 p.m. 

 

SECTION IX: 

 

 That those motions to reconsider must be made by a council member who voted with the 

majority at the same or next succeeding meeting of the Council. 

 

SECTION X: 

 

 That whenever it shall be required by one or more members the "ayes" and the "nays" 

shall be recorded and any member may call for a division on any question. 

 

SECTION XI: 

 

 That all questions of order shall be decided by the presiding officer of the Council with 

the right of appeal to the full Council. 

      

SECTION XII: 
 

 That the presiding officer of the Council may, at his or her discretion, call any members 

to take the chair to allow him or her to address the Council or make a motion or discuss any other 

matter at issue. 

 

SECTION XIII: 

 

 That motions to lay any matter on the table shall be first in order, and on all questions, the 

last amendment, the most distant day, and the largest financial sum shall be first put. 

 

SECTION XIV: 

 

 The Council may meet in executive session only for purposes authorized by State law and 

only after the City Attorney certifies the stated purposes for the executive session are authorized 

by state law. When a council person makes a motion for executive session for an enumerated 

purpose, the presiding officer shall put the motion to vote. The estimated length of the executive 

session shall be stated prior to the vote.   If the majority of the council shall vote in favor of the 

187 4/15/2013 CM



 

ORDINANCE 2013-21              COUNCIL RULES OF PROCEDURE          PAGE  4 

 

Motion for executive session the body shall then move into executive session for discussion of 

the matter for which executive session was called.  No action may be taken in an executive 

session.  When the discussion has been completed, the council shall resume its deliberations in 

public. 

 

SECTION XV: 

 

 That a motion for adjournment shall always be in order. 

 

SECTION XVI: 

 

 That the rules of the Council may be amended in the same manner as any other ordinance 

of general or permanent nature. 

 

SECTION XVII: 

 

 That the rules of the Council may be temporarily suspended by unanimous vote of all 

members present. 

 

SECTION XVIII: 

 

 That the chair of each respective committee, or the council member acting for him or her, 

shall submit and make report to the Council when so requested by the presiding officer or any 

member of the Council. 

  

SECTION XIX: 

 

 That all ordinances, resolutions or propositions submitted to Council which require the 

expenditure of money will lie over until the next Council meeting; provided that such ordinance, 

resolution or propositions may be considered earlier by unanimous consent of the Council 

members present at such meeting by roll call vote and provided further that this rule shall not 

apply to the current expenses of, or contracts previously made with, or regular salaries of 

officers, or wages of employees of the City. 

 

SECTION XX: 

 

 That all motions, resolutions, ordinances or other business required to be in writing shall 

be prepared and supplied to all Council members by twelve noon one full city work day before 

the Council meeting in which it is to be presented.  (e.g. if City offices are not open, the Friday 

before the Monday council meeting, then the writings and documentation shall be supplied to 

each city council member by placing same in each member's mailbox at City Hall by noon 

Thursday.) 

 

a. It is desired that information be supplied to the City Clerk in time to be made part  of the 

agenda packet.  

 

188 4/15/2013 CM



 

ORDINANCE 2013-21              COUNCIL RULES OF PROCEDURE          PAGE  5 

 

b. When a work session is called or scheduled between two council meetings, all motions, 

resolutions, ordinances or other business required to be in writing shall be presented in 

substantially the same form as that which is required for presentation at council meeting. 

 

c. Notwithstanding Sections a. and b., hereinabove, in the situation of an actual emergency 

sections a. and b., hereinabove, shall not apply.  For purposes herein an actual emergency 

exist from failure to act will result in an immediate and irrefutable harm to the City or 

any of its citizens and or otherwise it was physically impossible to comply with notice 

requirements set forth herein as the same may be determined by the presiding officer of 

the Council. 

 

 

SECTION XXI: 

 

 That the City Clerk, City Engineer, City Attorney, Chief of Police, Fire Chief, Finance 

Director, Public Works Director, Human Resources Director, Building Departments Director, 

Community Development Director, Parks and Recreation Director, Library Director, Civic 

Center Director and such other officers and department head employees shall attend all meetings 

of the City Council, and shall otherwise remain in the Council Chamber for such length of time 

as the Council, presiding officer or Mayor may direct. 

 

 

SECTION XXII: 

 

 That the City Council may have the ability to have a discussion on any motion. 

 

SECTION XXIII: 

 

 That the current edition of Roberts' Rules of Order be and is hereby adopted as the rules 

of procedure for this Council in those situations which cannot be resolved by the rules set forth 

in this Ordinance. 

 

SECTION XXIV: 

 

 The City Council will set all public hearings by a majority vote.  At all public hearings 

after the initial presentation all questions and comments are limited to three (3) minutes per 

speaker. 

 

SECTION XXV: 

 

 That Ordinance 2012-63 be and is hereby repealed in its entirety and that other 

ordinance(s), parts of ordinance(s) or resolutions(s) conflicting with the provisions of this 

Ordinance are hereby repealed insofar as they conflict. 

 

SECTION XXVI: 

 

 That the provisions of this Ordinance are severable.  If any provision, section, paragraph, 

sentence are part thereof shall be held to be unconstitutional or invalid by a court of competent 

189 4/15/2013 CM



 

ORDINANCE 2013-21              COUNCIL RULES OF PROCEDURE          PAGE  6 

 

jurisdiction, such decision shall not effect or impair the remainder of this Ordinance, it being the 

legislative intent to ordain and act each provision section, paragraph, sentence, and part thereof 

separately and independently of each other. 

 

SECTION XXVII: 

 

 This Ordinance shall take effect and be enforced from and after approval by the City 

Council of the City of Daphne upon publication required by law. 

 

 ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

DAPHNE, ALABAMA on this the _______  day of                    , 2013. 

 

 

CITY OF DAPHNE, 

AN ALABAMA MUNICIPAL CORPORATION 

 

 

 

 

       ________________________________ 

       DANE HAYGOOD, 

       MAYOR 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

________________________________ 

REBECCA A. HAYES, 

CITY CLERK 

 

 

 

 

 

 

190 4/15/2013 CM



 CITY OF DAPHNE 
 ORDINANCE NO. 2013-23  
 
  

AN ORDINANCE TO CONTROL PUBLIC  
AND PRIVATE OUTDOOR LIGHTING 

  
 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Daphne, Alabama finds that the 
improper use of outdoor lighting is a threat to the health, safety and welfare of the 
citizens of the City of Daphne, Alabama; and  
 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Daphne, Alabama finds that the 
proper placement, orientation, distribution and fixture type and size of outdoor 
lighting promotes the public health, safety and welfare; and,  
 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Daphne, Alabama wishes to 
promote the public health, safety and welfare by encouraging lighting that provides 
safety, utility and security, as well as preventing glare on public roadways and to 
protect the privacy of adjoining properties:    
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY 
COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA AS FOLLOWS: 

 
SECTION I.   DEFINITIONS 

 
A. For the purpose of this Ordinance, the following words and phrases 
shall have the meaning respectively ascribed to them by this section unless 
taken specific exception to elsewhere in this ordinance. 

 
1.  Direct Light. Light emitted directly from the lamp, off of the 
reflector or reflector diffuser, or through the refractor or diffuser lens, 
of a luminaire. 

 
2.  Fixture. The assembly that houses the lamp or lamps and can 
include all or some of the following parts: a housing, a mounting 
bracket or pole socket, a lamp holder, a ballast, a reflector or mirror, 
and/or a refractor or lens. 

 
3.  Foot-candle. A quantitative unit of measure referring to the 
measurement of illumination incident at a single point.  One 
foot-candle is equal to one lumen uniformly distributed over an area of 
one square foot. 

 
 

191 4/15/2013 CM



ORDINANCE 2013-23       FOR OUTDOOR LIGHTING        PAGE 2 
 
 
 

4.  Glare. Light emitting from a luminaire with an intensity great 
enough to reduce a viewer=s ability to see, and in extreme cases 
causing momentary blindness. 

 
5.  Grandfathered luminaires. Luminaires not conforming to this 
code that were in place at the time this code was voted into effect.  
When an ordinance Agrandfathers@ a luminaire, it means that such 
already-existing outdoor lighting does not need to be changed unless 
a specified period is specified for adherence to the code. 

 
6.  Height of Luminaire. The height of a luminaire shall be the 
vertical distance from the ground directly below the centerline of the 
luminaire to the lowest direct-light-emitting part of the luminaire. 

 
7.  Indirect Light. Direct light that has been reflected or has 
scattered off of other surfaces. 

 
8.   Lamp. The component of a luminaire that produces the actual 
light. 
 
9.   Lumen. A unit of luminous flux.  One footcandle is one lumen 
per square foot.  For the purposes of this Ordinance, the 
lumen-output values shall be the INITIAL lumen output ratings of a 
lamp. 

 
10.  Luminaire. A complete lighting unit consisting of a lamp or 
lamps together with the components designed to distribute the light, to 
position and protect the lamps, and to connect the lamps to the power 
supply.  A luminaire is also commonly referred to as a fixture.  

 
11.  Outdoor Lighting. The night-time illumination of an outside 
area or object by any man-made device located outdoors that 
produces light by any means. 

 
12.  Temporary Outdoor Lighting. The specific illumination of an 
outside area or object by any man-made device located outdoors that 
produces light by any means for a period of less than 14 days, with at 
least 180 days passing before being used again unless otherwise 
approved by the city council. 

 
 

192 4/15/2013 CM



ORDINANCE 2013-23      FOR OUTDOOR LIGHTING              PAGE 3 
 
 

SECTION II. REGULATIONS 
 

A.  REGULATIONS 

 

All public and private outdoor lighting installed in the City of Daphne shall be in 

conformance with the requirements established by this Ordinance.  

 

     B.     LUMINAIRE RESTRICTIONS 

 

1.  Private outdoor luminaires shall not exceed 30,000 lumens and shall not exceed 

forty (40) feet in height.  No direct light from any private outdoor luminaire owned 

by any owner or tenant of any property shall direct light upon any residential 

property, house or structure not owned by that owner or tenant.  The intentional 

directing of light upon the personal property, house or structure of another shall not 

be subject to any grandfather provision as provided in this ordinance.  

 

2.  With the exception of outdoor sports luminaries, public outdoor luminaires 

shall not exceed 55,000 lumens.  Outdoor sports luminaries shall not exceed 

200,000 lumens.    

 

C.   EXCEPTIONS 

 

1.  All temporary emergency lighting needed by the Police or Fire Departments or 

other emergency services, as well as all vehicular luminaires, shall be exempt from 

the requirements of this Ordinance. 

 

2.  All hazard warning luminaires required by Federal regulatory agencies are 

exempt from the requirements of this article, except that all luminaires used must 

be red and must be shown to be as close as possible to the Federally required 

minimum lumen output requirement for the specific task. 

 

3.  Law Governing Conflicts.  Where any provision of federal, state, county, of 

town statutes, codes, or laws conflicts with any provision of this Code, the most 

restrictive shall govern unless otherwise regulated by law. 

 

4.  Temporary circus, fair, carnival, or civic uses. 
 

5.  Lighting necessary for construction is exempt from this Code 
provided said lighting is discontinued immediately upon completion of 
the construction work. 
 
 
 
 

193 4/15/2013 CM



ORDINANCE 2013-23    FOR OUTDOOR LIGHTING      PAGE   4 
 

D. OUTDOOR ADVERTISING SIGNS 

 

1. Luminaries used to illuminate outdoor advertising sign shall direct light only on 

the intended advertising sign and shall not direct light upon any other structure.  

 

2.  Outdoor advertising signs of the type constructed of translucent materials and 

wholly illuminated from within shall not cause glare.  Dark backgrounds with light 

lettering or symbols are preferred, to minimize detrimental effects.  

 

3.  Compliance Limit.  Existing outdoor advertising structures shall be brought 

into conformance with this Code within ten years from the date of adoption of this 

provision. 

 

E.   RECREATIONAL FACILITIES 

 

1.  Any light source permitted by this Code may be used for lighting of outdoor 

recreational facilities (public or private), such as, but not limited to, football fields, 

soccer fields, baseball fields, softball fields, tennis courts, or show areas, provided 

all the following conditions are met: 

 

a.)  All events shall be scheduled so as to be completed before or as near to 

10:30 p.m. as practicable.  Under no circumstances shall an event begin 

after 11:00 p.m. except to conclude scheduled events that were in progress 

before 11:00 p.m. and circumstances prevented concluding before 11:00 

p.m. 

 

b.)  The lighting fixtures shall be specified in the Lighting Plan, mounted 

and aimed so that the illumination falls within the primary playing area and 

immediate surrounding so that no direct light illumination is directed off 

site.  

 
F.   PROHIBITIONS 

 
5. Laser Source Light.  The use of laser source light or any similar high 

intensity light for outdoor advertising is prohibited.  The use of  laser 

source light or any similar high intensity light may be permitted pursuant to 

the provisions of Section II (G). 

 

2. Searchlights.  The operation of searchlights for advertising purposes is 

prohibited.  The use of searchlights or any similar high intensity light may 

be permitted pursuant to the provisions of Section II (G). 

 

G.   TEMPORARY OUTDOOR LIGHTING 

 

Any temporary outdoor lighting that conforms to the requirements of this 

Ordinance shall be allowed.  Nonconforming temporary outdoor lighting may be 

permitted by the City Council after considering: (1) the public and/or private  

194 4/15/2013 CM



ORDINANCE 2013-23      FOR OUTDOOR LIGHTING            PAGE  5 

 

benefits that will result from the temporary lighting; (2) any annoyance or safety 

problems that may result from the use of the temporary lighting; and (3) the 

duration of the temporary nonconforming lighting.  The applicant shall submit a 

detailed description of the proposed temporary nonconforming lighting to the City 

Council, who shall consider the request at a duly called meeting of the City 

Council.  A failure by the City Council to act on a request within the time allowed 

shall be construed a denial of the request. 

 

SECTION III GRANDFATHERED LUMINAIRES 
 

A.   All luminaires lawfully installed prior to the effective date of this Ordinance shall 

be grandfathered.  However, any luminaire that replaces a grandfathered 

luminaire, or any grandfathered luminaire that is moved, must meet the standards 

of this Ordnance.  Advertising signs are grandfathered only for a period of ten 

years from effective date of this Ordinance. 

 

B.   Grandfathered luminaires that direct light toward streets or parking lots that cause 

disability glare to motorists or cyclists should be either shielded or re-directed 

within 90 days of notification, so that the luminaires do not cause a potential hazard 

to motorists or cyclists.  

 
 

SECTION IV.   PENALTY 
 

A. VIOLATION  
 

It shall be an offense for any person to violate any of the provisions of 
this Ordinance.  Each and every day during which the violation 
continues shall constitute a separate offense. 

 
B. VIOLATIONS AND LEGAL ACTIONS 

 
If after investigation, the Code Enforcement Officer finds that any 
provision of the Ordinance is being violated, he shall give notice by 
hand delivery or by certified mail, return-receipt requested, of such 
violation to the owner and/or to the occupant of such premises, 
demanding that violation be abated within thirty (30) days of the date 
of hand delivery or of the date of mailing of the notice.  If the violation 
is not abated within the thirty-day period, the Code Enforcement 
Officer may institute actions and proceedings, either legal or 
equitable, to enjoin, restrain, or abate any violations of this Ordinance 
and to collect the penalties for such violation, including the issuance 
of a municipal offense citation. 
 
 

195 4/15/2013 CM



ORDINANCE 2013-23      FOR OUTDOOR LIGHTING            PAGE  6 
 

C.   PENALTIES 
 

A violation of this Ordinance, or any provision thereof, shall be 
punishable by a fine of not less than fifty dollars ($50.00) nor more 
than five hundred dollars ($500.00) for any individual, corporation, 
association, or other legal entity for each violation.  The imposition of 
a fine under this Code shall not be suspended.  Each day of violation 
after the expiration of the thirty-day period provided in paragraph two 
(2) above shall constitute a separate offense for the purpose of 
calculating the civil penalty. 

 
D. SUMMONS AND COMPLAINT 

 

This Ordinance shall also be subject to enforcement by the issuance of a summons 

and complaint pursuant to the provisions of Ordinance No. 1993-02, as the same 

may be from time to time amended. 

 
SECTION V.  SEVERABILITY   

 
If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase, or portion of this 
Ordinance is for any reason held invalid or unconstitutional by any Court of 
competent jurisdiction, such portion shall be deemed a separate, distinct 
and independent provision and such holding shall not affect the validity of 
the remaining portion hereof. 

 
SECTION VI. REPEALER 

 
City of Daphne Ordinance number 2003-31 is hereby repealed in its entirety.  
All other City Ordinances or parts thereof in conflict with the provisions of 
this Ordinances are hereby repealed insofar as they conflict. 

 
SECTION VII.   EFFECTIVE DATE 

 
This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after the date of its 
approval by the City Council of Daphne and publication as required by law. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

196 4/15/2013 CM



ORDINANCE 2013-23      FOR OUTDOOR LIGHTING             PAGE  7 
 
 
 

ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF DAPHNE, 
ALABAMA, ON THE ______  DAY OF ___________, 2013. 
 
 

CITY OF DAPHNE 
 
 
 

_____________________________ 
DANE HAYGOOD, MAYOR 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________ 
REBECCA A. HAYES, CITY CLERK 
 
 
 
 
 

 

197 4/15/2013 CM


	AGENDA - April 15
	ROLL CALL
	Council Minutes - April 1
	Council Work Session Minutes - April 8
	Report of Standing Committees
	Finance Minutes
	Backup to Finance Minutes 4-8
	B&P Minutes
	Ordinance Committee Minutes - April 10
	Public Works Committee Meeting Minutes
	Report of Special Boards
	Planning Commission Minutes
	Set Public Hearing Info
	Utility Board Minutes - Jan 30th
	Report of Officers
	Engineering Services #1 E-Mail - RJ
	Engineering Services #2 Resolution
	Engineering Services #3 RFQ
	Engineering Services #4 Agreement 2013
	ABC License
	Resolutions & Ordinances
	2013-24 - RES - LIST-GOVDEALS COM               
	2013-25 - RES - wellroadtocountyrd
	Backup to 2013-25 - RES
	2013-26 - RES - Street Acceptance - northlamhattylaneport
	Backup to 2013-26 - RES
	2013-27 - RES -  Street Acceptance - carolinewoodsph2b
	Backup to 2013-27 - RES
	2013-28 - RES - SALES TAX Holiday 2013
	2013-29 - RES - Auburn University SeaGrant Proposal Support
	2013-20 - ORD - ONE-TIME D ISCRETIONARY BONUS TO CERTAIN EMPLOYEES
	2013-21 - ORD - COUNCIL RULES OF PROCEDURE - REVISED DRAFT (3-27-13)
	2013-23 - ORD - NEW LIGHTING ORDINANCE 12-15



